LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL

¥ Lisa Davey-Bates, Executive Director 525 South Main Street, Ukiah, CA 95482
I_AKE Apc www.lakeapc.org Administration: Suite G ~ 707-234-3314
Planning: Suite B ~ 707-263-7799

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL (APC)
AGENDA

Wednesday, December 10, 2025
9:00am

Primary Location: City Council Chambers
225 Park Steet, Lakeport, California

Alternate Conference Location:
Caltrans-District 1
1656 Union Street, Eureka, California

Zoom Login:
Dial-in number: 1 (669) 900-6833 / Meeting ID: 853 3195 2448# Passcode: 181327

(Zoom link provided to the public by request.)
Public comments will be accepted in person and through teleconference during the meeting on any
agenda item when public comment is invited by the Chair.

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
2. Northern Rural Energy Network (NREN) Update (Brennan)
3. Adjourn to Policy Advisory Committee

PUBLIC EXPRESSION
4. Public input on any item under the jurisdiction of this agency, but which is not otherwise on the
agenda

CONSENT CALENDAR
5. Approval of November 12, 2025 Minutes

REGULAR CALENDAR

6. Discussion and Proposed Adoption of Wildfire Evacuation & Preparedness Plan (Speka)

7. Discussion and Possible Approval of the 2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP)
and Resolution #25-26-15 (1V/la)

8. Discussion and Possible Adoption of the Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA)
Methodology (Speka)

9. Discussion, Public Hearing and Possible Approval of the Lake APC’s 2026 Regional Transportation
Plan/Active Transportation Plan and Negative Declaration ($pea)

10. Approval of the Draft Lake APC Meeting Calendar (Parker)

RATIFY ACTION
11. Adjourn Policy Advisory Committee and Reconvene as Area Planning Council
12. Consideration and Adoption of Recommendations of Policy Advisory Committee

REPORTS
13. Reports & Information:
a. Lake APC Planning Staff
7. Planning Projects ($peka)
z.  Miscellaneous
b. Lake APC Administration Staff


http://www.lakeapc.org/

Lake County/ City Area Planning Council Agenda
December 10, 2025, Meeting - Page 2

i. Next Meeting Date — January 14, 2026 (Tentative)
7. Miscellaneous
c. Local Agency Updates
d. Lake APC Directors
e. Caltrans
7. Lake County Project Status Update (Ahlstrand)
7. Miscellaneous
f.  Rural Counties Task Force
. Next Meeting Date — (ITBD)
g. California Transportation Commission
i. Next Meeting Date — January 29 — 30 (Sacramento)
h. California Association of Councils of Governments (CalCOG)
7. CDAC Meeting — (TBD)
7. CalCOG Board of Directors Meeting — March 9 (Long Beach)
#. Regional Leadership Forum — March 9 — 11 (Long Beach)
1. Miscellaneous

INFORMATION PACKET
14. a) 10/23/25 Lake TAC Minutes

ADJOURNMENT
Kokkokkok ok kKK

PUBLIC EXPRESSION

Any member of the public may speak on any agenda item when recognized by the Chair for a time period, not to exceed 3 minutes
per person and not more than 10 minutes per subject, prior to the Public Agency taking action on that agenda item.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) REQUESTS

To request disability-related modifications or accommodations for accessible locations or meeting materials in alternative formats
(as allowed under Section 12132 of the ADA) please contact the Lake Area Planning Council office at (707) 263-7799, at least 5
days’ notice before the meeting.

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

The Brown Act, Section 54954.2, states that the Board may take action on off-agenda items when:

a) a majority vote determines that an “emergency situation” exists as defined in Section 54956.5, or

b) a two-thirds vote of the body, or a unanimous vote of those present, determines that there is a need to take immediate action
and the need for action arose after the agenda was legally posted, or

c) the item was continued from a prior, legally posted meeting not more than five calendar days before this meeting.

CLOSED SESSION

If agendized, Lake County/City Area Planning Council may adjourn to a closed session to consider litigation or personnel matters
(i.e., contractor agreements). Discussion of litigation or pending litigation may be held in closed session by authority of Govt. Code
Section 54956.9; discussion of personnel matters by authority of Govt. Code Section 54957.

POSTED: December 4, 2025

Attachments:
Agenda Item #2 — NREN Staff Report

Agenda Item #5 — 11/12/25 Lake APC Draft Minutes
Agenda Item #6 — Staff Report

Agenda Item #7 — Staff Report, Reso & Draft RTIP
Agenda Item #8 — RHNA & Staff Report

Agenda Item #9 — Staff Report, CEQA & Comments
Agenda Item #10 — Meeting Calendar

Agenda Item #14a— 10/23/25 Lake TAC Minutes



Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/25
Agenda Item: #2

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

TITLE: Northern Rural Energy Network (NREN) DATE PREPARED: November 26, 2025
MEETING DATE: December 10, 2025

SUBMITTED BY: Jennifer Brennan, Energy Program Manager, NREN

BACKGROUND

NREN is part of a statewide initiative of Regional Energy Networks (RENs) focused on helping
communities address rising utility costs through the adoption of energy efficiency programs targeted at
rural customers. NREN Lake is launching 6 energy efficiency programs in Lake County focused on the
residential, commercial, and public sectors, while also providing financing, promoting enhanced local
codes and standards adoption and workforce development opportunities.

The four NREN partners are LAPC, Mendocino Council of Governments (MCOG), Redwood Coast
Energy Authority (RCEA) and Sierra Business Council (SBC) that cover 17 counties in rural Northern
California.

Important Updates:

NREN Lake has hired a new Energy Specialist I. Jody Lowblad, formerly with Dow & Associates in an
planning/administrative role with Lake APC and MCOG. She will begin her new position on December
8". Jody has many years of experience leading teams doing public outreach and education and excels at
customer service. And, as a resident of Upper Lake, she is looking forward to making a difference in
Lake County communities. We are thrilled to have her!

NREN Lake, along with our other 3 partners, is spending considerable time crafting the new NREN
Business Plan due to the CPUC in February. The new Business Plan will outline all NREN programs and
program activities offered between 2028-2031.

NREN Program Development:

NREN Lake has also been busy working on program design and development of our 4 remaining NREN
programs to launch in 2026: Finance, Commercial, Public Equity and Workforce, Education and Training
(including Codes and Standards education). All programs require Implementation Plans to be submitted to
the CPUC and future program activities will be included in the next Business Plan. We are eager to
complete program design and launch these programs to further benefit Lake County ratepayers.

As a follow-up to last month’s update, we will be meeting with Willdan (the third-party administrator for
PG&E offering no cost heat pump hot water heaters for government-owned buildings) in January. They
have been approved to receive additional funding from PG&E but are waiting to hear the final scope of
work they will be implementing. Once we have confirmation, we will begin outreach to all school districts
and local governments to create a pipeline of potential projects for Willdan. (Their program may include
lighting projects as well.)

NREN Lake Accomplishments:

e Over 300 Energy Efficiency Kits have been provided to Lake County ratepayers to date.
e Seven Home Energy Assessments have been completed to date.
e Two residential energy efficiency rebates have been processed to date, with 3 in review.



APC Meeting — Novenber 10, 2025

ACTION REQUIRED: None

ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: None



Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/25
Agenda Item: #5

-~

. LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL
e . . . . .
LAKE APC [t A i " Admintration: Sute G - 7072343314

Planning: Suite B ~ 707-263-7799

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL (APC)

(DRAFT) MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, November 12, 2025

Location: Lake Transit Authority
9240 Highway 53 Lower Lake, California & Zoom

Teleconference Locations:
525 South Main Street Suite B, Ukiah
Caltrans District 1. 1656 Union St., Eureka

Present
Bruno Sabatier, Supervisor, County of Lake
Brad Rasmussen, Supervisor, County of Lake
Stacey Mattina, City Council Member, City of Lakeport
Russ Cremer, City Council, City of Clearlake
Dirk Slooten, City Council, City of Clearlake
Kenneth Parlet, Council Member, City of Lakeport
Danny Wind, Member at Large

Absent

Also Present
Lisa Davey-Bates, Executive Director — Lake APC
James Sookne, Admin Staff — Lake APC
Michael Villa, Planning Staff — Lake APC
Charlene Parker, Admin Staff — Lake APC
Samuel Gaytan, Project Manager — Paratransit Services
Laurie Fisher — Lake Links

Attending via Zoom
Tatiana Ahlstrand, Caltrans District 1 (Policy Advisory Committee)
Nephele Barrett, Planning Staff — Lake APC
Alexis Pedrotti, Admin Staff — Lake APC
Hector Ortega, Admin Staff — Lake APC
John Speka, Planning Staff — Lake APC
Adeline Leyba, City of Clearlake
Jetf Pimentel — Caltrans District 1
Jennifer Brennan, Energy Program Manager — NREN
Ryan O’Neill, Energy Program Specialist —- NREN
Faith Newton — The Resiliency Initiative

1. Call to Order/Roll Call


http://www.lakeapc.org/

Chair Mattina called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. Secretary Charlene Parker called roll.
Members present: Sabatier, Rasmussen, Cremer, Slooten, Mattina, Parlet, and Wind.

2. Northern Rural Energy Network (NREN)
Jennifer Brennan reported on the Northern Rural Energy Network’s staff continuing to
implement the six Lake County energy-efficiency programs, conducting outreach, and recruiting
for a Program Specialist I position to start in the next month. Staff anticipate meeting the key
performance indicators and expect to exceed their goals for this year. Residential rebate amounts
were increased on October 3*. Staff distributed over 300 Energy Efficiency Kits, completed
four Home Energy Assessments in October, processed two residential rebates with three
pending, ran digital ads, and attended an NREN partner meeting focused on governance,
strategic planning, and the upcoming CPUC Business Plan. Staff also participated in several
community events and presentations between September and October, including additional
outreach at the Scotts Valley Tribal Resource Fair. Referrals for government-owned facilities
were already underway, including the Kelseyville Senior Center and 11 additional County
facilities scheduled for no-cost heat pump water heater installations by the end of 2025.
Members were encouraged to share additional public facilities interested in heat pump water
heaters or lighting retrofits.

Additional conversations ensued regarding other resources to fit rate schedules that best fit
consumer rate patterns. As part of home assessments, staff reviewed customer bills to evaluate
whether they were on the most appropriate rate schedule that best matched their usage patterns.
Staff noted that PG&E’s online rate comparison tool uses historical data to recommend the
most suitable rate plan. Outreach materials, including rate schedule information, continued to be
provided, and similar efforts will occur during commercial outreach. Staff also addressed
questions regarding the Lake County’s NREN budget and would email Director Sabatier with
additional details. In response to a question about school district outreach, staff explained that
discussions had taken place with Willdan and that districts would be notified once the 2026
program budget was clarified.

3. Adjourn to Policy Advisory Committee
Chair Mattina adjourned to the Policy Advisory Committee (PAC) at 9:12 a.m. to include
Caltrans District 1 staff and allow participation as a voting member of the Lake APC.

PUBLIC EXPRESSION

4. Public input on any item under the jurisdiction of this agency, but which is not
otherwise on the agenda.
None

CONSENT CALENDAR

5. Approval of October 1, 2025 Draft Minutes
Director Sabatier made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar, as presented. The motion was seconded by
Director Slooten and carried unanimonsly.
Roll Call V'ote: Ayes (8)-Directors Sabatier, Rasmussen, Cremer, Slooten, Mattina, Parlet, Wind, Tatiana
Ablstrand, Noes (0); Abstain (0); Absent (0)

REGULAR CALENDAR
6. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Adoption of Wildfire Evacuation &
Preparedness Plan



John Speka introduced the item and reported that funding for the Wildfire Evacuation
Preparedness Plan was obtained through the Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant
Program. John introduced Faith Newton from The Resiliency Initiative, the consultant preparing
the Plan. Faith gave a detailed presentation outlining the goal of evaluating existing
infrastructure, planning efforts, and preparedness measures in Lake County, providing
evacuation strategies, recommended agency roles and responsibilities, and key considerations for
relocating individuals, animals, and schools from hazardous areas to designated safe zones. Faith
noted that the Plan was developed to support timely, organized, and accessible evacuations,
reflecting Lake County’s commitment to proactive planning, informed decision-making, and
community-focused emergency response. The Lake County Wildfire Evacuation and
Preparedness Plan was intended to support and complement existing emergency protocols
established in the Lake County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), as well as those of the
incorporated cities. Faith explained that the Plan aims to lessen the strain on communities during
large-scale evacuations, and ensure equitable access to services. The Plan provides operational
tools to support coordinated evacuation and communication across agencies and community
sectors and was developed in close collaboration with law enforcement, fire agencies, EMS, and
other partners through the Technical Advisory Group.

Additional discussion followed regarding the need for consistency in the descriptions of past
fires and in the criteria used for identifying student populations at each school district, noting
that although the numbers may change, consistent reporting helps clarify district needs.
Members commented that the plan should include the same level of detail across all sections
and, while scheduled for review every four years, should also be evaluated after major incidents
to incorporate lessons learned. Questions were raised about how the document would be shared
with the community, with members noting that having an accessible plan could reduce public
fear. Director Slooten pointed out that Crawford Avenue was incorrectly shown as an
evacuation route on the Clearlake map, as it is a dead-end street that does not connect to
Highway 53, and recommended reviewing all routes and adding a legend to the one-way-in/one-
way-out map. Faith stated additional revisions needed for the final document would include
ensuring consistency in past fire reporting, identifying approximate student counts for each
school district, including post-incident reviews.

Director Cremer made a motion to table the Wildfire Evacnation Preparedness Plan until the December meeting,
to include the changes in the final document. The motion was seconded by Director Rasmussen and carried
unanimously.

Roll Call V'ote: Ayes (8)-Directors Sabatier, Rasmussen, Cremer, Slooten, Mattina, Parlet, Wind, Tatiana
Ablstrand, Noes (0); Abstain (0); Absent (0)

Presentation of Draft Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation Plan

John introduced the item and explained that the Regional Transportation Plan/Active
Transportation Plan (RTP/ATP) is a 20-year planning document intended to supportt a safe and
efficient transportation system for the movement of people and goods throughout the region.
The plan lists past projects and potential projects, funding sources, and goals and policies
designed to achieve transportation improvements needed and to be eligible for potential
funding. John provided an overview of the plan’s elements, including overarching regional
issues, the state highway system, local streets and roads, active transportation, public transit,
tribal transportation, and aviation. The Active Transportation Plan element is for non-motorized
projects identified and eligible for Active Transportation Program grants and focuses on
improving and integrating bicycle and pedestrian networks. John explained that over the past



year, the plan was presented through public workshops, including an additional virtual workshop
for tribal participation. Staff provided presentations and flyers and shared materials on county
and city websites and social media. Presentations were given to town halls, school boards, and
other community advisory groups to expand awareness of the RTP/ATP and to promote
participation in the survey and interactive mapping tool used to identify transportation needs
and recommend improvements. The Draft RTP/ATP and the Draft Negative Declaration
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) document have been released. The review period
goes through December 10, which was the target date of adoption. If adoption is not achieved
in December, it will be continued to February 10,

Additional suggestions were made to meet with economic development teams from each
jurisdiction to collaborate and align projects with the needs of the local economy.

Discussion and Direction for the Preparation of the 2026 Regional Transportation
Improvement (RTIP)

Michael Villa reported that the California Transportation Commission (CTC) adopted the 2026
State Transportation Improvement Programs (STIP) Fund Estimate (FE), identifying a target of
$1,668,000 for the Lake County region and a maximum share of $8,447,000 through FY 31/32.
After programming $84,000 for Planning, Programming, and Monitoring (PPM), $1,584,000
remained available for projects. Michael noted that the previous cycle’s unprogrammed balance
of $5,558,000 was added to the FE, bringing the total available for projects to $7,142,000, and
that balance was designated by the County for the South Main Street/Soda Bay Road Corridor
Project. At the October APC meeting, the Board approved programming the remaining
$1,584,000 and utilizing $2,805,000 in future shares for the City of Cleatlake’s Dam Road/Dam
Road Extension Roundabout, with the City also using Regional Surface Transportation Program
(RSTP) funds and potentially local funds for full construction. Staff explained that if the County
is unable to allocate construction, the City of Clearlake will have access to the STIP funds,
eliminating the need for RSTP or local funds. Michael noted a portion of the alternative RTTP
version has been prepared in the even the County was unable to allocate the funds.

Additionally, Caltrans secured $43.541 million in right-of-way funding for Segment 2B of the
Konocti Corridor project through the 2024 Interregional Transportation Improvement Program
(I'TIP) and is seeking an additional $44.25 million for construction in the 2026 I'TIP, expected
for adoption in November 2026. There were also plans to pursue $44.25 million in SB 1 Trade
Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP) funding to fully fund construction.

Discussions included how the RTIP funds would be allocated. Michael explained the County will
submit an allocation form for the South Main Street/Soda Bay Road Corridor Project by the
beginning of December of this year. The Dam Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout for the
City of Cleatlake would be programmed for 2026/27, with the understanding that funding is not
guaranteed.

Jeff Pimentel reiterated that half of the right-of-way funding for Segment 2B of the Konocti
Corridor Project had been secured through the Interregional Transportation Improvement
Program (ITIP), and that Caltrans planned to pursue the second half through SB 1 Trade
Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP) funding to fully fund construction. He noted that the
lower funding request made the project more competitive; however, the ITIP funds delayed the
project, which would not be available until the 2029/30 fiscal year. Jeff added the fucus was the
project timeline and when to resume work to preserve funds and meet the new deadline.



RATIFY ACTION

9. Adjourn Policy Advisory Committee and Reconvene as Area Planning Council

Chair Mattina adjourned the Policy Advisory Committee at 10:13 a.m. and reconvened as the
APC.

10. Consideration and Adoption of Recommendations of Policy Advisory Committee
Director Sabatier made a motion to adopt the recommendations of the Policy Advisory Committee and
reconvene as the APC. The motion was seconded by Director Cremer and carried unanimously.

REPORTS
11. Reports & Information
a. Lake APC Planning Staff
7. Planning projects
John Speka gave a brief update on the current projects.

Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Infrastructure Plan:

The Countywide Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Infrastructure Plan assesses the region’s
charging and fueling infrastructure to support future expansion. The technical analysis of
potential sites was completed, including several site visits with local agency officials. The
second phase of public engagement is underway, presenting findings to local advisory
committees and at town halls, and is expected to continue through December. Adoption of
the Plan was anticipated in January or February 2026.

Director Slooten noted that Tesla has extensive data that could be useful for the project. Lisa
added that staff had discussions with the consultant about incorporating that data.

Local Road Safety Plan Update

The Local Road Safety Plan Update for all three jurisdictions was moving along. The
consultant (GCW, Inc.) was chosen by the project selection committee, with a contract signed
in October. The next steps were a kick-off meeting scheduled to plan the details of the
project.

Tribal Transportation Needs Study

The Tribal Transportation Needs and Engineered Feasibility Study, awarded through the
Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant, will assess deficiencies, needs, and priorities
within tribal road systems and identify opportunities to improve transportation networks. It
will also support updates to existing Tribal Transportation Plans and foster collaboration on
future projects benefiting both the tribes and the region. The Procurement process was
anticipated to begin in November to prepare and release a Request for Proposals.

Preparation of Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Application

Applications for this year’s Sustainable Transportation Planning Grants were due November
21. Lake APC plans to submit an application for a Clear Lake Ferry Service Feasibility Study.
John noted that a previous application for this project in 2023 was unsuccessful.

Further discussion addressed airport-related planning and the need to work with the County
on updating the General Plan to incorporate the need for the Airport Commission to resume



meetings. It was noted that airports are only a small part of the current RTP/ATP but will
require more attention in future years.

#. Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) Methodology Update
John reported that the Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) process is used to
project the number of housing units needed across all income levels for the 2027/35 cycle.
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) issued a RHNA
Determination assigning the Lake County region 2,498 units, and the objection letter
requesting a reduced allocation of 1,970 units, based on the County Housing Action and
Implementation Plan, was rejected. Staff explained that HCD also rejected the draft
allocation methodology, stating it did not sufficiently address factors or demonstrate how it
furthers State housing objectives. A revised methodology is being prepared, but staff noted
uncertainty about receiving HCD approval before the December 11 Lake APC Board
meeting, which may delay adoption of both the methodology and the RTP/ATP.

Discussions included that the RHNA determination criteria were based on population and
wildfire considerations. John stated that he would email APC members the original RHNA
needs allocation from HCD, HCD’s response to the APC’s letter of objection, and HCD’s
response to the submittal of the allocation methodology.

7. Miscellaneous

b. Lake APC Administration Staff
7z Next Meeting Date — December 10, 2025 (Lakepor?)
7. Miscellaneous

c. Local Agency Updates
None

d. Lake APC Directors
Director Sabatier provided an update on the CalCOG Board meeting, noting that the
main topic was upcoming changes to the gas tax calculation, as reliance on the per-gallon
fuel tax would no longer provide sufficient revenue to meet the needs of the state and
local jurisdictions.

e.  Caltrans
. Lake County Project Status Update:
Tatiana reiterated that applications for the Sustainable Transportation Planning Grants
were due November 21. She also noted that Caltrans staff was reviewing signal timing at
the Highway 53 and Highway 29 intersection during peak school hours based on
comments from previous meetings.

7. Miscellaneous:

f. Rural Counties Task Force
1. Next Meeting Date — November 21 (Teleconference)

g. California Transportation Commission
1. Next Meeting Date — December 4-5 (Riverside)



h. California Association of Councils of Governments (CalCOG)
1. CDAC Meeting — (IBD)
i.  CalCOG Board of Directors Meeting — (I'BD)
i. Miscellaneous
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by Chair Mattina at 10:33 a.m.

Respecttully Submitted,

DRAFT

Charlene Parker, Administrative Associate



Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/25
Agenda Ltem: #6

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

TITLE: Lake County Wildfire Evacuation and Preparedness Plan DATE PREPARED: December 3, 2025
Discussion and Possible Adoption Meeting Date: December 10, 2025
SUBMITTED BY: John Speka, Senior Transportation Planner

BACKGROUND: Last month the Board heard a presentation on (and considered adoption of) the Lake
County Wildfire Evacuation and Preparedness Plan. Revisions were requested at the meeting which were
asked to be added prior to adoption. The requested revisions focused on items that were addressed as
follows:

e Background on pages 5-6: Updated to have the same data points on each fire. The data in the plan
is what has been made available through https://www.fire.ca.gov/incidents/

e One-way in/one-way out Map on page 29: A legend has been added to the map to reflect the
symbols.

e Table 6: Lake County School Districts on pages 32 -33: A column for “2024 - 2025 Enrollment”
has been added to include the enrollment numbers for each district and school.

e Maintenance on Page 48: The following statement was updated to read "Revisions may also occur
outside the scheduled review period in response to policy or procedural updates, lessons learned
from an After-Action Report (AAR) of real-world incidents, or recommendations from exercises
ot evaluations."

e Appendix B: Evacuation Maps: Figure 1] - Clearlake was updated to ensure that Crawford Ave
does not show a connection to Hwy 53. An arrow was included on this road as the route is a
connection point to Old Hwy 53.

A final version of the Plan can be found on the APC webpage here:

news/lake-county-wildfire-evacuation-planning-underway

ACTION REQUIRED: Consider revisions and adoption of the Lake County Wildfire Evacuation and
Preparedness Plan

ALTERNATIVES: None

RECOMMENDATION: The Board approves the Lake County Wildfire Evacuation and Preparedness
Plan as revised.


https://www.fire.ca.gov/incidents/
https://www.lakeapc.org/news/lake-county-wildfire-evacuation-planning-underway/

Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/25
Agenda Item: #7

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT
TITLE: Public Hearing & Adoption of the 2026 DATE PREPARED: 12/03/2025
Regional Transportation Improvement Program MEETING DATE: 12/10/2025

SUBMITTED BY: Michael Villa, Regional Project Coordinator

BACKGROUND:

Each odd-numbered year we consider the programming of projects that are to be included in the State
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) that goes into effect July 1 of the following year. We do
this by developing our Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) which programs our
Regional Improvement Program (RIP) shares as identified by the California Transportation
Commission (CTC) in the STIP Fund Estimate (FE) for the 2026 cycle. The 2026 FE identified an
available STIP programming target through FY 2030/31 in the amount of $1,668,000 for the Lake
County region. Of the $1,668,000, $84,000 will be programmed for Planning, Programming and
Monitoring leaving $1,584,000 to be available for projects. In the previous STIP cycle we had an
unprogrammed balance of $5,558,000 added to the FE increasing the total for projects to $7,142,000
through 2030/31.

The $5,558,000 from the 2024 cycle was reserved for the South Main Street/Soda Bay Road
Rehabilitation Corridor Project thus will not be reflected in the RTIP due to the County having begun
the allocation process which has left the target share total at $1,584,000. Additionally, during the 2024
STIP cycle, the APC Board approved reserving $5,500,000 of the $17,030,000 Max Share for the Dam
Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout, to be programmed when the project was ready to move
forward.

The 2026 Fund Estimate also identified a Maximum Net Share through FY 2031/32 of $8,447,000.
Any programming that exceeds the 2030/31 Target Share is pulling funds that would be available in the
2028 STIP cycle.

The Lake APC Board recommended programming the available Target Share and Max Share for the
Dam Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout Project totaling $2,805,000, although this may not be
guaranteed due to the STIP being overcommitted the first few years of the 2026 cycle. With the 2026
Max share being significantly reduced from the prior STIP cycle due to the decline in incremental fuel
excise tax revenue, the City of Cleatlake will utilize RSTP and/or local funds to fully fund the
construction component.

At the November meeting, the TAC recommended the approval of the draft RTIP, which includes
programming the remaining Target Share as well as using the Max Share to program the Dam
Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout Project. At this time, we ask that the Board consider the
RTIP for adoption. A resolution has been prepared which reflects the TAC recommendation for
approval. Following adoption, the RTIP will be forwarded to Caltrans and the California
Transportation Commission prior to the December 15, 2025, due date along with any additional
project documentation.

ACTION REQUIRED:
1. Make finding that proper notice of the meeting has been provided. Notice was published in the Lake
County Record-Bee on 11/22/2025.



2. Receive Staff Report.

3. Open public hearing.

4. Receive public comments.

5. Close public hearing.

6. Action by Resolution on the 2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program.

ALTERNATIVES: Adopt the RTIP with changes

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution No. 25-26-15, adopting the 2026 Regional Transportation
Improvement Program as presented and authorize staff to submit the adopted RTIP to Caltrans and the
California Transportation Commission.



LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL

RESOLUTION NO. 25-26-15

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE
2026 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

THE AREA PLANNING COUNCIL HEREBY FINDS, DECLARES AND RESOLVES
THAT:

WHEREAS,

= The Lake County/City Area Planning Council (APC) is the designated Regional

Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) for Lake County; and

= The APC, as the RTPA, is required by State law to prepare, adopt, and submit to Caltrans
and the California Transportation Commission by December 15, 2025, a Regional

Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP); and

= In August of 2025 the California Transportation Commission released a 2026 State
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Fund Estimate which identifies funds available

for programming by regional transportation planning agencies; and

= The 2026 STIP Fund Estimate identified a new programming target share for the Lake

County region of $1,668,000; and

= The 2026 Fund Estimate included a reserve of $5,558,000 from the 2024 RTIP, which was
designated for the Soda Bay Road Rehabilitation Project through a competitive application
cycle during the 2024 STIP, while also reserving future funds for the Dam Road/Dam Road

Extension Roundabout Project; and

= The Total 2026 STIP Fund Estimate target share through Fiscal Year 30/31 is $7,226,000;

and a maximum net share of $8,447,000 through Fiscal Year 31/32; and

= On October 1, 2025 the APC Board approved an RTIP amendment to allow the $5,558,000
to be allocated for either portion of the South Main Street/Soda Bay Road Corridor project,
rather than just the Soda Bay Road portion of the project, and the funds are expected to be

allocated by the California Transportation Commission at their January 2026 meeting; and

= The Board also desired to program a total of $84,000 for Planning, Programming and
Monitoring, and all remaining available shares in the amount of $2,805,000 through Fiscal
Year 2031/32 for the Dam Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout with the understanding

that it is not fully guaranteed due to the STIP being overcommitted the first few years; and

= The City of Clearlake will utilize Regional Surface Transportation Program funds and/or
local funds to fully fund the construction component of the Dam Road/Dam Road Extension

Roundabout project; and



= The 2026 RTIP has been prepared which includes the following programming:

Planning, Programming & Monitoring $84 ,000
Dam Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout $2,805,000
Total All Programming Needs: $2,889,000

= The APC desires to keep all other existing project programming intact unless otherwise
1dentified in the RTIP document; and

= The Technical Advisory Committee has recommended approval of the 2026 Regional
Transportation Improvement Program; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The APC finds that the 2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) is
consistent with the 2022 Lake County Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation Plan
and draft 2026 Regional Transportation Plan; and

The APC hereby adopts the 2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP),
including programming identified above, and directs staff to forward this resolution and the
appropriate documentation to Caltrans and the California Transportation Commission.

Adoption of this Resolution was moved by Director , seconded by Director
, and carried on this 10th day of December 2025, by the following roll call

vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

WHEREUPON, THE CHAIRPERSON DECLARED THE RESOLUTION ADOPTED,
AND SO ORDERED.

ATTEST: Lisa Davey-Bates Stacey Mattina, Chair
Executive Director APC Member



Lake County Publishing

Lake County Record-Bee

415 Talmage Road Suite A
Ukiah, CA. 95482
legals@record-bee.com

2117222

DOW & ASSOCIATES
525 S MAIN STREET SUITE B
UKIAH, CA 95482

Affidavit of Publication
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
County of Lake

I, Sue Fullbright, being first duly sworn, depose and say: That at and
during all the dates and times herein mentioned | was, and now am
the legal clerk of the Lake County Record-Bee, a newspaper published
for the dissemination of local or telegraphic news and intelligence of a
general character, having a bona fide subscription list of paying
subscribers, and which is, and has been, established, printed and
published at regular intervals, to-wit: Daily (except Sunday and
Monday) in the City of Lakeport, County and State aforesaid, for more
than one year preceding the date of the publication below mentioned,
a newspaper of general circulation, as that term is defined by Section
6,000 et al, of the Government Code of the State of California, and is
not and was not during any said times, a newspaper devoted to the
interests or denomination, or for any members of such classes,
professions, trades, callings, races or denominations.

That at, and during all of said dates and times herein mentioned,
affiant had and now has knowledge and charge of all notes and
advertisements appearing in said newspaper; that the notice of which
the annexed is printed copy, was published each week in the regular
and entire issue of one or more number of the said newspaper during
the period and times of publication thereof, to-wit:

For 1 issue published therein on the following date, viz: 11/22/2025;

that said notice was published in said newspaper proper and not in a
supplement; that said notice, as so published, was set in type not
smaller than nonpareil, and was preceded with words printed in black
face type not smaller than nonpareil, describing and expressing in
general terms the purport and character of said notice, as fully
appears from the exact copy of said notice, which is hereto annexed
as aforesaid.

Executed this 25th day of November, 2025 at Lakeport, California. |

hereby declare under penalty of perjury that | have read the foregoing
and that it is true and correct.

Sue Fullbright, Legal Clerk

r.BP13-07/12/17

Legal No.
MEETING NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Lake
County/City Area Planning Council (APC),
which is the regional transportation planning
agency for Lake County, will hold a public
hearing on Wednesday, December 10, 2025, at
9:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as possible, to
consider the following item:

Public Hearing - Adoption of 2026 Regional
Transportation Improvement Program

The APC will hold a public hearing to consider
adoption of a Regional Transportation
Improvement Program (RTIP) which will allow
the County of Lake to allocate $5,558,000 for
the South Main Street/Soda Bay Road Corri-
dor Project. Additionally, the RTIP will pro-
gram approximately $2,805,000 for the City of
Clearlake’s Dam Road/Dam Road Extension
Roundabout Project with the understanding
that it is not guaranteed to be available due
to an overcommitment in the State Transpor-
tation Improvement Program.

The purpose of this public hearing is to re-
ceive public testimony prior to formal adop-
tion of the 2026 RTIP.

For additional information, please contact Mi-
chael Villa (villam@dow-associates.com) at
the Lake Area Planning Council, 707-263-7799.
Lisa Davey-Bates
Executive Director 11-22/2025

0006934247



Lake County/City Area Planning Council
2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program

Adopted: December 10, 2025







2026 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT

PROGRAM (2026 RTIP)

Table of Contents

Cover Letter

. Overview and Schedule

Section 1. Executive Summary
Section 2. General Information

Section 3. Background of Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP)

Section 4. Completion of Prior RTIP Projects
Section 5. RTIP Outreach and Participation

. 2026 STIP Regional Funding Request
Section 6. 2026 STIP Regional Share and Request for Programming
Section 7. Overview of Other Funding Included in Delivery of RTIP Projects

Section 8. Interregional Transportation Improvement Program Funding/Needs

Section 9. Multi-Modal Corridors - Projects Planned Within the Corridor
Section 10. Highways to Boulevards Conversion Pilot Program
Section 11. Complete Streets Consideration

. Relationship of RTIP to RTP/SCS and Benefits of RTIP
Section 12. Regional Level Performance Evaluation
Section 13. Regional and Statewide Benefits of RTIP

. Performance and Effectiveness of RTIP

Section 14. Evaluation of the Cost Effectiveness of RTIP
Section 15. Project Specific Evaluation

. Detailed Project Information

Section 16. Overview of Projects Programmed with RTIP Funding

. Appendices
Section 17. Project Programming Request Forms

Section 18. Board Resolution or Documentation of 2026 RTIP Approval
Section 19. Fact Sheet

Section 20. Documentation on Coordination with Caltrans District (Optional)
Section 21. Detailed Project Programming Summary Table (Optional)
Section 22. Alternative Delivery Methods (Optional)

Section 23. Additional Appendices (Optional)

Page Number

W WN =~ -

W 00 ~NNO O

20
21

22



Regional agency will complete the Table of Contents above.

This page is left blank.



A.Overview and Schedule

Section 1. Executive Summary

The Lake County/City Area Planning Council (APC) is the Regional Transportation Planning
Agency (RTPA) for Lake County. The APC is required by California State Law to prepare and
adopt a Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) by December 15 of each odd
numbered year. This RTIP has been developed in conformance with State law and the
anticipated adoption of the 2026 Lake County Regional Transportation Plan.

At the August 14 -15, 2025 CTC meeting, the California Transportation Commission adopted
the 2026 State Transportation Improvement Program Fund Estimate. The Fund Estimate
identified a STIP programming target through FY 2030/31 of $1,668,000 for the Lake County
region. The available funding includes $84,000 available for Planning, Programming &
Monitoring, leaving $1,584,000 available for projects. There is also $5,558,000 available that
was not programmed in the 2024 RTIP. This leaves a total of $7,142,000 available for projects.
The 2026 STIP FE also identified a maximum net share of $8,447,000 through FY 31/32.

The Lake APC proposes to program $1,584,000 from its target share along with $1,221,000 in
advance share, for a total of $2,805,000 toward the City of Clearlake’s Dam Road/Dam Road
Extension Roundabout project. In addition, $84,000 will be programmed for Planning,
Programming, and Monitoring, bringing the total programmed amount in the 2026 RTIP to
$2,889,000. The remaining $5,558,000 from the target share will be allocated at a future CTC
meeting this fiscal year to support the existing South Main Street and Soda Bay Road Corridor
Project, as approved in the 2024 RTIP.

Section 2. General Information

Insert contact information in the text fields below.

- Regional Agency Name
Lake County/City Area Planning Council

- Agency website links for Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) and
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). (insert links below)

Regional Agency Website Link: https://www.lakeapc.org/
RTIP document link: https://www.lakeapc.org/library/plans/
RTP link: https://www.lakeapc.org/library/plans/

- Regional Agency Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer Contact Information

Name Lisa Davey-Bates
Title Executive Director
Email Idaveybates@dbcteam.net

Telephone 707-234-3314

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 1



- RTIP Manager Staff Contact Information

Name Michael Villa

Title Regional Project Coordinator
Address 525 South Main Street, Suite B
City/State/Zip Ukiah, CA

Email villam@dow-associates.com

Telephone 707-234-4765

- California Department of Transportation Headquarter Contact Information
Name Sudha Kodali
Title Chief, Division of Financial Programming
Address Office of Capital Improvement Program, Department of Transportation
Mail Station 82. P.O. Box 942874
City/State/Zip Sacramento, CA 94274
Email sudha.kodali@dot.ca.gov / OCIP@dot.ca.gov

- California Transportation Commission (CTC) Contact Information

Name Kacey Moore-Gutierrez

Title Associate Deputy Director

Address 1120 N Street, Mail Station 52
City/State/Zip Sacramento, CA 95814

Email Kacey.Moore-Gutierrez@catc.ca.gov

Section 3. Background of Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP)

A. What is the Regional Transportation Improvement Program?

The Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) is a program of highway, local road,
transit and active transportation projects that a region plans to fund with State and Federal
revenue programmed by the California Transportation Commission in the State Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP). The RTIP is developed biennially by the regions and is due to the
Commission by December 15 of every odd numbered year. The program of projects in the RTIP
is a subset of projects in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), a federally mandated master
transportation plan which guides a region’s transportation investments over a 20-to-25-year
period. The RTP is based on all reasonably anticipated funding, including federal, state and local
sources. Updated every 4 to 5 years, the RTP is developed through an extensive public
participation process in the region and reflects the unique mobility, sustainability, and air quality
needs of each region.

Additionally, the Corridor Management Plan (CMP) is a long-range conceptual document detailing
how a corridor is performing, why it is performing that way, and how it may perform in the future.
The CMP recommends projects and strategies to achieve corridor goals and objectives. The goals
of the Lake 20/29/53 CMP are to improve traveler safety, improve mobility through efficiency and
reliability, increase multimodal access, economic opportunity and to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions along the corridor. The plan lays out the district’s vision for medium and long-term
concept development, while conveying key aspects of the existing and planned multimodal
transportation corridor.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 2


mailto:sudha.kodali@dot.ca.gov
mailto:OCIP@dot.ca.gov
mailto:Kacey.Moore-Gutierrez@catc.ca.gov

B. Regional Agency’s Historical and Current Approach to developing the RTIP

The APC has identified priority, regionally significant projects to be considered for RTIP funding.
In STIP cycles when those projects do not need funding, or there are remaining funds available
after providing for those projects, local agencies may apply for funding. Funds are then awarded
based on adopted criteria. The project recommendations are made by the Technical Advisory
Committee then presented to the APC Board, typically in November. The final RTIP and project
selection is then adopted by the APC Board at a public hearing in November or December.

Section 4. Completion of Prior RTIP Projects (Required per Section 78)

Project Name Fund Type Pro;;r:lgrfme d* Funds Allocated | Funds Expended
Green Street COVID Share $133,000 $133,000 $133,000

Reconstruction

*For projects with a total cost of $50 million or greater or a total STIP programmed amount (in
right-of-way and/or construction) of $15 million or greater, the reports shall also include a
discussion of the project benefits that were anticipated before construction, compared to an
estimate of the actual benefits achieved.

Section 5. RTIP Outreach and Participation
A. RTIP Development and Approval Schedule

Action Date

CTC adopts Fund Estimate and Guidelines August 14-15, 2025
Caltrans identifies State Highway Needs September 15, 2025
Caltrans submits draft ITIP October 15, 2025
CTC ITIP Hearing, North October 30, 2025
CTC ITIP Hearing, South November 7, 2025
Regional Agency adopts 2026 RTIP RTPA Board Approval Date
Regions submit RTIP to CTC December 15, 2025
Caltrans submits ITIP to CTC December 15, 2025
CTC STIP Hearing, North January 28, 2026
CTC STIP Hearing, South February 5, 2026
CTC publishes staff recommendations February 27, 2026
CTC Adopts 2026 STIP March 19-20, 2026

B. Community Engagement

RTIP projects are derived from the Regional Transportation Plan, which is developed through
extensive public participation. While outreach for RTP updates has traditionally been conducted
through workshops at various locations throughout the County, COVID-19 protocols in place for
much of 2020 and 2021 required alternative forms of engagement. An online interactive

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 3



mapping platform was used instead for this purpose, soliciting input through “virtual” means
such as mapped location-based comments, opinion surveys, and budget preference tools. The
2026 RTP is currently being updated and is expected to be adopted by the APC Board at the
February 2026 meeting. As part of this process, extensive public outreach has taken place
across the County, including participation at local fairs and holiday parades, as well as
presentations at town halls, school board meetings, advisory council meetings, and county
board of supervisor's meetings. Online interactive mapping platforms first adopted during the
pandemic have also continued to be used for the current update to collect location-specific
feedback and input on transportation needs. Outreach efforts have reached all cities and
unincorporated areas of Lake County to ensure broad community engagement. Early in the
planning and design process, involve community members and environmental organizations to
identify potential environmental issues as well as potential avoidance, minimization and
mitigation opportunities. Interagency and Intergovernmental involvement included outreach to
all cities and the county and consultation with Tribal governments at initial stages of plan
development, and throughout the process. In addition to the public participation that goes into
the RTP, the RTIP is then developed through a series of public meetings, including a public
hearing which is noticed in regional newspapers.

Additionally, the Dam Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout project has received public input
through various studies. The project has been recognized in the City of Clearlake’s General
Plan which conducted extensive public input efforts during the preparation of the 2015 General
Plan update. The project was also recognized in the SR 53 Corridor study which received input
from local community figures including members from the Clearlake Chamber of Commerce,
Department of Social Services and the California Highway Patrol. In development of the region’s
initial Active Transportation Plan, workshop participants in the Clearlake area indicated that a
roundabout was desired at Dam Road where the Walmart is located. This project promotes
active transportation with the addition of bike lanes and sidewalks as well as improving traffic
flow. The improvement of traffic flow enhances safety due to the current infrastructure causing
traffic to overflow onto SR 53 increasing accidents.

C. Consultation with Caltrans District (Required per Section 20)

Caltrans District: 1

The APC works with Caltrans in preparation of the RTIP through the Technical Advisory
Committee and through participation on the Policy Advisory Committee. For regionally funded
projects on the State system, the APC receives information from project managers at Caltrans
regarding needed programming, which is then proposed in the RTIP. No funding of this nature is
proposed in this RTIP.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 4



B.2026 STIP Regional Funding Request

Section 6. 2026 STIP Regional Share and Request for Programming

A. 2026 Regional Fund Share Per 2026 STIP Fund Estimate

Target Share through 30/31: $7,226,000 Maximum Target Share through 31/32: $8,447,000

B. Advanced Project Development Element (APDE) — Identify any proposals for the APDE share,
if identified in the fund estimate, by including “(APDE)” after the project name and location.
Identify requests to advance future county shares for a larger project by including “(Advance)”
after the project name and location. (See Section 42-47)

There is no APDE capacity identified for the 2026 STIP.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 5



Section 7. Overview of Other Funding Included with Delivery of Regional Improvement Program Projects

Figure are in thousands

Other Funding

RTIP ID or Utility
Page # Underground Total Project

Proposed 2026 RTIP HIP HSIP RSTP DEMO Funding Cost
SHS12

Lake 29 Expressway (Segment 2A) 900 5100 97000*
SHS1/SHS13

Lake 29 Expressway (Segment 2B) 900 48641 133000**
LSR1 South Main St. Widening & Bike

Lanes 6725 47 202 2985 1250 11209
LSR2

Soda Bay Rd. Widening & Bike Lanes | 1503 353 202 1958 1250 5266
LSR13 Lakeport Boulevard Improvement

Project Phase 1 894 470 1364
LSR10 Dam Road/ Dam Road Extension

Roundabout 4149 492*** 4641

Totals 15071 53741 870 202 202 492 4943 2500 252683

Notes: * Includes $91,000 of Future Unfunded Needs
** Includes $90,000 of Future Unfunded Needs
*** The estimated amount that will be available

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 6



Section 8. Interregional Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) Funding and Needs

The purpose of the Interregional Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) is to improve
interregional mobility for people and goods in the State of California. As an interregional program,
the ITIP is focused on increasing the throughput for highway and rail corridors of strategic
importance outside the urbanized areas of the state. A sound transportation network between and
connecting urbanized areas ports and borders is vital to the state’s economic vitality. The ITIP is
a five-year program managed by Caltrans and funded with 25% of new STIP revenues in each
cycle. Developed in cooperation with regional transportation planning agencies to ensure an
integrated transportation program, the ITIP promotes the goal of improving interregional mobility
and connectivity across California.

Caltrans secured $43.541 million in right of way funding through the 2024 ITIP for one of the
region’s top priorities, the Lake 29 Expressway Segment 2B. Caltrans is also proposing $44.250
million in construction funding in the 2026 ITIP, which would cover approximately half of the
project’s total construction cost. In addition, Caltrans intends to pursue an additional $44.25
million through the SB1 Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP) Cycle 5 to fully fund the
construction for Segment 2B. This project improves safety and system effectiveness for all
travelers by separating the interregional and regional travel by supporting freight improvements
to the south on State Route 29 and improving local circulation, including active transportation, to
the north on SR 20. It complements the Lucerne Complete Streets project that was part of the
2022 ITIP. This project has long been one of the top regional priorities.

Lake County has no rail network, the majority of people travel the region via the interregional
highways via private car or bus service from the Lake Transit Authority (LTA). Currently the
most traveled highway is the SR 20 Corridor. Because this highway traverses the North Shore
of Clear Lake through various small towns, SR 20 is subject to long delays if traffic incidents
occur along the corridor. In addition, because SR 20 along the North Shore serves as main
street to many communities, there’s significant pedestrian and bicycle usage. The Area
Planning Council’s long-term goal is to make the SR 53/SR 29 Corridor the principal arterial
corridor through the region. SR 53 and SR 29 are a fair distance from the lake shore therefore
less environmentally sensitive. Segment 2C of the Lake 29 Expressway, a 3.1-mile portion of
SR 29, was completed in the summer 2023, expanding the highway from two lanes to four
lanes. Itis Lake APC'’s priority to continue this expansion in order to accommodate freight traffic
and improve safety; relocating truck traffic to SR 29 will also improve bicycle and pedestrian
safety along SR 20 which has a narrower roadway and is surrounded by residential
development.

Section 9. Projects Planned within Multi-Modal Corridors

The Lake 29 Improvement Project is the primary component of what is referred to as the
region’s “Konocti Corridor,” the preferred east-west route through Lake County. The project
proposes to widen an approximately eight-mile stretch of State Route (SR) 29 from an existing
two-lane highway to a four-lane divided highway with controlled access. From west to east on

SR 29, the improvements begin just west of its intersection with SR 175 and will end at its

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 7



intersection with Diener Drive. The overall goals of the project are to improve truck speeds and
travel time reliability by providing consistent, free-flow speeds through this segment of SR 29.
The project was broken down into three segments to help diffuse the overall burden of funding
in its entirety. Segment “2C,” roughly consisting of the westernmost three-mile section of the
project has been completed. Segment 2B has secured funding for design in prior years and
most recently $43.541 million through the 2024 ITIP for right of way and right of way support.
Construction and support costs have yet to be secured. Segment 2A has yet to secure funding
for right of way as well as construction and support costs. As part of the larger Konocti Corridor,
the project will also encourage interregional traffic to utilize the south shore routes (SR 53 and
SR 29) as opposed to SR 20 along the Northshore, where the highway also serves as “Main
Street” to the communities of Nice, Lucerne, Glendale and Clearlake Oaks, thereby increasing
corridor safety for multimodal users in these areas.

Section 10. Highways to Boulevards Conversion Pilot Program

As referenced in Section 8 and 9, SR 20 along the North Shore of Clear Lake serves as a “Main
Street” to the communities of Nice, Lucerne, Glendale and Clearlake Oaks. The RTP identifies
the effort to divert the majority of traffic through the county to the SR53/SR29 Corridor via the
Lake 29 Improvement Project. SR 20 would be a great candidate for the Highways to
Boulevards Conversion Pilot Program.

The Highway 20 Northshore Communities Traffic Calming Plan and Engineered Feasibility
Study, completed in 2020, outlines the regional efforts to focus on the local transportation
functions served by Highway 20 in these Northshore communities by reducing vehicle speeds
and enhancing pedestrian and bicyclist access and safety. The proposed improvements to the
Northshore complement the Konocti Corridor projects on Highway 29. The plan is available on
the Lake APC website.

SR 281 from post mile 14 to post mile 17 is constructed to state standards. The remainder of
the road continues as Soda Bay Road until it reaches SR 29 in Kelseyville. SR 281 does not
serve a statewide purpose due to low volumes and a parallel state route, but this area is heavily
traveled by pedestrians and bicyclists because of an adjoining residential development. The
roadway does not currently have pedestrian or bicycle facilities or an adequate shoulder;
currently bicyclists and pedestrians travel directly in the traffic lanes or below the shoulder in a
dirt ditch. This route would also be a good candidate for the Highways to Boulevards
Conversion Pilot Program.

11. Complete Streets Consideration (per Section 26)

The Complete Streets Act of 2008 required the legislative body of a city or county, upon any
substantive revision of the circulation element of the general plan, to modify the circulation
element. The circulation element plans for a balanced, multimodal transportation network that
meets the needs of all users of streets, roads, and highways. Complete Streets remain an
especially relevant topic for communities of Lake County as many roads continue to lack

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 8



adequate infrastructure for multiple users, yet are still shared by motorist, pedestrians and
bicyclists throughout the region. Each agency within the Lake County Region considers
Complete Streets Elements for all projects.

The Lakeport Boulevard Improvement Project Phase 1 incorporates complete streets elements
by improving and constructing sidewalks as well as incorporating bike lanes for both sides of the
road.

The County’s South Main Street and Soda Bay Road Corridor project include complete streets
elements with the inclusion of bicycle lanes for cyclists. A center lane will be constructed to
enhance the flow of traffic as well as increasing safety by providing a buffer for vehicles
traveling in the opposite direction as well as reducing rear end collisions.

The City of Clearlake’s Dam Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout project will also
incorporate complete streets elements. In the Lake County Active Transportation Plan,
members of the community identified a need for a roundabout at this intersection. This will
include constructing sidewalks and bike lanes to promote active transportation, that will benefit
the local shopping center and various educational centers by making them more accessible for
all modes of transportation.

C.Relationship of RTIP to RTP/SCS and Benefits of RTIP

Section 12. Regional Level Performance Evaluation (per Section 22A of the quidelines)

The Lake County region does not have a Sustainable Communities Strategy or Alternative
Planning Scenario. The region is not currently monitoring the performance measures listed in
the RTIP template other than Pavement Condition Index on local streets and roads. However,
as there are no large-scale local road rehabilitation projects included in the STIP programming
for the region, this measurement is not relevant to evaluation of this RTIP. As an alternative to
the suggested measures, the APC has prepared the following evaluation of the effectiveness of
RTIP projects in achieving the goals and objectives of the RTP.

Below are relevant goals, policies, and objectives excerpted from the draft 2026 Lake County
Regional Transportation Plan, which is anticipated to be adopted by the APC in February of
2026. The following tables from the RTP summarize the projects from the 2026 RTIP, all of
which have been carried over from previous STIP cycles. Specific goals, objectives and policies
are then listed which support each project, followed by a description of how the projects link to
the objectives and policies.

ELEMENT: OVERARCHING POLICIES
Goal: Develop a multi-modal system of seamless transportation facilities designed to serve both
regional and interregional needs.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 9



Objectives Policies

OI-1: Coordinate, support | OI-1.1: Participate in the regional planning efforts of other
and encourage multi- agencies.
modal regional planning

activities in Lake County OI-1.2: Coordinate with local and State agencies on health,

across jurisdictional security and emergency response planning efforts. Work

boundaries. cooperatively with local, regional and State agencies to ensure

effective emergency response efforts are well coordinated during
natural disasters such as wildfire or flood events.

OI-1.3: Support non-motorized, recreational opportunities in and
around Clear Lake such as increased public access to the lake, trail
development for hiking and equestrian uses, and continued efforts
to develop a bike route around the lake.

OI-1.4: Evaluate individual projects with an eye for potential
regionwide impacts when formulating, designing and constructing
transportation projects of various modes and at all levels.

OI-1.5: Work with local jurisdictions to further housing goals of the
region and to update and implement Regional Housing Needs
Allocations (RHNA).

OI-1.6: Encourage projects that emphasize infill and transit-
oriented development within the region.

0I-2.1: Pursue funding in partnership with federal, State and local

agencies to fund projects consistent with Complete Streets

OI-2: Support Complete concepts and design strategies.

Streets planning to

improve multi-modal 0I-2.2: Encourage local agencies to adopt Complete Streets
forms of connectivity policies and implement Complete Street strategies and projects.
within the transportation

system. 0I-2.3: Incorporate Complete Streets concepts and policies into

future planning documents.

0OI-2.4: Implement existing strategies within planning documents
such as Active Transportation Plan and Highway 20 Northshore
Communities Traffic Calming Plan.

0I-2.5: Coordinate with Caltrans to incorporate Complete Streets
policies into projects on State Highway facilities consistent with
Caltrans Director’s Policy DP-37 and Senate Bill (SB) 960.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 10



Objectives Policies

0I-2.6: Support efforts to reduce dependency on automobile use
including promotion of bicycle/pedestrian transportation and
public transit use.

OI-3: Reduce Greenhouse | OI-3.1: Facilitate implementation of the Active Transportation Plan
Gas (GHG) emissions by (ATP) and construction of ATP projects to encourage students to
promoting and facilitating | walk and bike to school rather than traveling by car.

transit use and increasing

active transportation 0I-3.2: Update the Active Transportation Plan consistent with the

alternatives. Regional Transportation Plan update schedule, or as needed to

keep the plan current and meaningful.

0I-3.3: Support increased frequency/expansion of transit service
consistent with the local Unmet Transit Needs process.

0I-3.4: Support and facilitate the installation of electric vehicle
charging stations for public use. Explore options for affordable,
clean energy technology and programs.

OI-3.5: Support planning projects that further greenhouse gas
reducing efforts at the State level such as SB 32, SB 375, and SB
743.

OI-3.6: Support planning projects which will facilitate a transition
to zero emission vehicles consistent with Executive Order EO N-79-
20.

0I-3.7: Ensure planning projects are consistent with objectives of
the Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI)
and the Caltrans System Investment Strategy (CSIS).

Ol-4: Reduce and mitigate | OI-4.1: Early in the planning and design process, involve
environmental impacts of | community members and environmental organizations to identify
current and future potential environmental issues as well as potential avoidance,
transportation projects. minimization and mitigation opportunities.

0I1-4.2: Work with local jurisdictions to develop project specific
mitigation measures as a means of reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled
(VMT) resulting from land use development.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 11



Objectives Policies

OI-5: Increase or ensure OI-5.1: Pursue both traditional and non-traditional funding sources
steady stream of funding for planning, preconstruction and construction of transportation
for transportation projects.

planning, pre-construction

activities and construction. | ©1-3-2: Work cooperatively and collaboratively with other agencies
and organizations to secure funding for projects which further the
goals, objectives and policies identified in the Regional

Transportation Plan and Active Transportation Plan.

OIl-6: Support planning 01-6.1: Pursue funding sources that encourage active

projects that will benefit transportation and promote active forms of recreation for
public health in the region. | residents and visitors of all ages and physical capabilities.
0I-6.2: Encourage non-motorized planning activities that result in

lower GHG emissions and other air pollutants as a means of
improving air quality in the region.

01-6.3: Pursue funding sources for mobility-oriented projects that
improve access to health care for seniors, disabled or economically
disadvantaged residents of the region.

ELEMENT: STATE HIGHWAY SYSTEM
Goal: Provide a safe, well-maintained and efficient State highway network that addresses
regional and statewide mobility needs for people, goods and services.

Objectives Policies

SHS-1: Improve mobility SHS-1.1: Support as the highest priority, completion of remaining

on the State highway segments of the Lake 29 Improvement Project.
system throughout Lake
County. SHS-1.2: Coordinate with Caltrans to seek ITIP, SHOPP, SB 1 and

RAISE funding for the Lake 29 Improvement Project.

SHS-1.3: Support periodic update of the approved environmental
document for the Lake 29 Improvement Project to ensure its long-
term viability in aiding project implementation into the future.

SHS-1.4: Identify for funding consideration mobility improvements
on SR 20 consistent with the Highway 20 Northshore Communities
Traffic Calming Plan and the Active Transportation Plan.

SHS-1.5: Identify for funding consideration projects consistent with
the SR 53 Corridor Study.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 12



Objectives Policies

SHS-1.6: Implement strategies and projects to encourage trucks and
interregional traffic to use the Principal Arterial Corridor (includes
segments of SR 20 and SR 29, and all of 53) for travel through Lake
County.

SHS-1.7: Implement strategies and projects consistent with the
Interregional Transportation Strategic Plan (ITSP) and California
Freight Mobility Plan (CFMP).

SHS-1.8: Identify for funding projects that will work to reduce access
points and/or minimize conflict points within important regional
and interregional corridors.

SHS-2: Improve safety SHS-2.1: Coordinate with Caltrans to identify safety issues, develop
conditions on the State solutions and identify funding opportunities. Include regional input
highway system serving into the District 1 State Highway Operations and Protection Plan
Lake County. (SHOPP).

SHS-2.2: Coordinate with local and State agencies on security and
emergency response planning efforts, including the identification of
key evacuation and emergency access routes.

SHS-2.3: Implement traffic calming and safety improvements along
State highway segments that function as Main Streets within
communities such as Middletown, Nice, Lucerne, Glenhaven, and
Clearlake Oaks.

SHS-2.4: |dentify for funding consideration safety projects on all
State highways (SR 20, SR 29, SR 53, SR 175 and SR 281) in Lake
County.

SHS-2.5: Support projects which implement Caltrans “Safe System
approach” concepts (pursuant to Director’s Policy DP-36) including
those intended to eliminate severe crashes through proactive and
reactive safety measures (Vision Zero).

SHS-2.6: Cooperate with Caltrans and Lake County to facilitate
implementation of the Highway 20 Northshore Communities Traffic
Calming Plan projects in northshore communities.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 13



Objectives Policies

SHS-2.7: Pursue grant funding for studies and projects to improve
active transportation alternatives within State highway segments
that function as Main Streets within Lake County communities.

SHS-2.8: Consider construction of grade separations (e.g.
interchanges, overpasses, underpasses) and roundabouts as long-
term solutions to safety and capacity issues at major
intersections/junctions on the Principal Arterial Corridor.

SHS-2.9: Facilitate the identification of State highway related safety
issues within local communities and throughout the County.

SHS-2.10: Support the continued development of the Upstate CA
Regional ITS Master Plan. Ensure future ITS projects affecting the
Lake County region are in conformance with the goals of the Plan.

SHS-3: Facilitate efficient SHS-3.1: Identify constraints to highway freight movement on
and safe transportation of | segments of the Principal Arterial Corridor not yet programmed for
improvement.

SHS-3.2: Identify for funding consideration mobility improvements
along the Principal Arterial Corridor (SR 20, SR 53 and SR 29)
consistent with the California Freight Mobility Plan 2020 (CFMP)
and Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP) Guidelines.

goods within and through

Lake County.

SHS-3.3: Identify improvements to Minor Arterial segments of the
State highway system that facilitate safe and efficient goods
movement.

SHS-3.4: Work with the California Trucking Association and other

industry organizations to improve safety and remove constraints to

safe and efficient goods movement.

SHS-3.5: When planning and designing road projects, consider the
needs of vehicles used for goods movement, including Surface
Transportation Assistance Act (STAA) trucks and vehicles
transporting agricultural commodities and products.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 14



ELEMENT: BACKBONE CIRCULATION AND LOCAL ROADS

GOAL: Provide a well maintained, safe and efficient local circulation system that is coordinated
and complementary to the State highway system, and meets interregional and local mobility
needs of residents, visitors and commerce.

Objectives

Policies

LSR-1: Maintain, rehabilitate
and construct local streets
and roads consistent with
local and regional needs, city
and County area plans and
policies, and Complete
Streets principles.

LSR-1.1: Identify local streets and roads reconstruction projects
for funding consideration from the State Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP) as well as other sources.

LSR-1.2: Prioritize funding resources that may be available
through the STIP for capital and safety projects ahead of those
for potential rehabilitation projects.

LSR-1.3: Plan and design rehabilitation and reconstruction
projects consistent with Complete Streets concepts and design
strategies.

LSR-1.4: Use the Pavement Management Program to identify and
prioritize rehabilitation and reconstruction needs.

LSR-2: Develop multi-modal
transportation facilities as
needed to adequately serve
the mobility needs of
residential, commercial and
industrial development.

LSR-2.1: Coordinate with state and local agencies and developers
to ensure that multi-modal transportation alternatives,
consistent with the Complete Streets Act, are considered in the
design and construction of their transportation projects.

LSR-2.2: Support establishment of traffic impact fees to construct
new transportation facilities associated with new development.

LSR-2.3: Identify for funding consideration multi-modal mobility
improvements on the Eleventh Street corridor in Lakeport
consistent with recommendations of the Eleventh Street Corridor
Multimodal and Engineered Feasibility Study.

LSR-2.4: Continue to prioritize projects identified as regionally
significant by Lake Area Planning Council Resolution 17-18-10,
when considering potential uses of STIP funding.

LSR-3: Improve traffic
capacity, safety and
operations on the local
transportation network.

LSR-3.1: Identify for funding consideration local streets and roads
capacity, safety, and operational projects from funding sources
available through STIP and other resources such as ATP.

LSR-3.2: Coordinate with local agencies on security and
emergency response planning efforts, including the identification
of key evacuation and emergency access routes that may come
from the Wildfire Evacuation and Preparedness Plan.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 15




LSR-3.3: Limit the approval of new direct access points to State
highways.

LSR-3.4: Plan and design local and State improvements consistent
with the SR 53 Corridor Study.

LSR-3.5: Plan and design improvements consistent with the
Highway 20 Northshore Communities Traffic Calming Plan.

local and private funding
sources for transportation
system maintenance,
restoration and
improvement projects
consistent with this Plan.

LSR-4: Pursue federal, State,

LSR-4.1: Consider development and implementation of a
Transportation Impact Fee Program in coordination with the
County of Lake, the City of Lakeport and the City of Clearlake.

LSR-4.2: Assist local agencies in identifying and applying for
funding resources for improvements to all travel modes.

LSR-4.3: Support with studies or other activities local efforts to
increase transportation funding including local-option sales taxes
or other programs.

ELEMENT: BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN
GOAL: Provide safe, adequate and connected facilities and routes for bicycle and pedestrian
travel within and between the communities of Lake County.

Objectives

Policies

AT-1: Facilitate and
promote walking,
bicycling and other active
modes of transportation.

AT-1.1: Increase the utility of the non-motorized transportation network
by expanding the extent and connectivity of the existing bicycle and
pedestrian facilities.

AT-1.2: Collect data for the region to identify and prioritize travel demand
and investment priorities.

AT-1.3: Work with State and local agencies to incorporate bicycle and
pedestrian amenities, like secure bicycle parking facilities, and safety
countermeasures into planning requirements and improvement projects.

AT-1.4: Encourage and assist local agencies to develop and revise
planning documents, zoning ordinances and policies to meet the
objectives of the Active Transportation Program and the legislation
related to active transportation.

AT-2: Reduce Greenhouse
Gas emissions and Vehicle
Miles Traveled (VMT).

AT-2.1: Encourage reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions and
VMT by increasing pedestrian and bicycle trips.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 16




Objectives

Policies

AT-2.2: Promote safe and convenient bicycle and pedestrian access to
transit.

AT-2.3: Assist local agencies in the adoption of policies, ordinances, and
plans that promote more walkable communities with a mix of land uses.

AT-2.4: Encourage VMT reducing mitigation measures for discretionary
development projects at the local, regional and State level.

AT-3: Enhance public
health through the
development of active
transportation projects.

AT-3.1: Work with local agencies, schools and public health organizations
to engineer, educate, encourage, enforce and evaluate bicycle and
pedestrian environments for the benefit of all users and all abilities.

AT-3.2: Identify for funding consideration pedestrian facility
improvements consistent with the Lake County Pedestrian Facilities
Needs Study and other active transportation plans.

AT-4: Preserve
investments in the multi-
modal transportation
system.

AT-4.1: Maintain safe and accessible bicycle and pedestrian environments
to encourage active transportation.

AT-4.2: Plan and budget for lifecycle costs when constructing new
facilities for active transportation.

AT-5: Increase funding for
transportation planning,
design and construction of
active transportation
facilities.

AT-5.1: Pursue non-traditional funding sources for planning, design and
construction of active transportation facilities.

AT-5.2: Work cooperatively and collaboratively with other agencies to
secure funding for projects that further the goals, objectives, and policies
of local and regional Active Transportation Plans.

AT-5.3: Incorporate bicycle and pedestrian facilities into road
improvement and maintenance projects.

AT-5.4: Encourage local agencies to require new development to install,
contribute to and/or maintain bicycle and pedestrian facilities, including
end-of-trip facilities.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 17




Summary and Evaluation of Projects from the Lake County
2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program

Goals, Policies,
Objectives &

Local Performance
Agency Project PPNO Measures Evaluation/Discussion
City of Lakeport Blvd 4893 | LR Objective 3, Policy This project will consist of pedestrian improvements
Lakeport | Improvement 3.1, BP Objective 1, including street rehabilitation, complete streets sidewalk
Project Phase 1 Policy 1.1 gap closure, driveway conforms and crosswalk
improvements.
City of Dam Rd/Dam Rd 3125 | LR Objective 3, This project will provide a connection on the local road
Clearlake | Extension Policies 3.1, 3.5, SH system that was identified in the SR 53 Corridor Study
Roundabout Objective 1, Policy 1.5 | and will relieve traffic impacts on SR 53.
Lake Soda Bay Road 3033R | O Objective 2, Policy Widen and reconstruct roadway, bike lanes to be added
County Widening & Bike 2.4, LR Objective 1 & in conjunction with roadway widening. Bike lanes on
lanes 3, Policies1.1, 1.2, 1.3, | this route identified in 2002 Lake County Regional
3.1, BP Objective 1 & Bikeway Plan.
3, Policies 1.1, 3.3
Lake South Main St. 3032R | O Objective 2, Policy Widen and reconstruct roadway, bike lanes to be added
County Widening & Bike 2.4, LR Objective 1 & in conjunction with roadway widening. Bike lanes on
lanes 3, Policies1.1, 1.2, 1.3, | this route identified in 2002 Lake County Regional
3.1, BP Objective 1 & Bikeway Plan.
3, Policies 1.1, 3.3
Caltrans Lake 29 3100 | O Objective 5, Policy Highest priority segment of the expressway project.
Expressway 5.2, SH Objectives 1, 60% improvement to safety (current fatality rate is 6
Project (Segments 2, & 3, Policies 1.1, times average). Leverages approximately $50 mill in
2A & 2B) 1.7, 3.2 other funding. Provide four lane facility, reducing
collisions, reducing congestion and delay and improve
efficiency of goods movement.
Key: O = Overarching Policies SH = State Highway System

LR = Backbone Circulation and Local Roads

BP = Bicycle & Pedestrian

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 18




Section 13. Regional and Statewide Benefits of RTIP

The existing programmed projects provide significant regional and statewide benefit.

The Lake 29 Expressway Project will provide a significant improvement to safety in an area with
a history of numerous fatal accidents. This portion of SR 29 is part of the Route 20 Principal
Arterial Corridor, which was identified by Caltrans as a High Emphasis Focus Route in
California. This route provides a critical connection between the I-5 corridor in the Sacramento
Valley and the US-101 corridor serving the north coast, and provides links between the largest
population centers of Lake County. Improving this section of the Route will serve both local
residents and the traveling public.

The proposed project is expected to improve overall safety for bicyclists by providing widened
shoulders that bicyclists can use, thus reducing modal conflicts. The project will accomplish
goals of the Caltrans 2021 Interregional Transportation Strategic Plan by meeting the needs of
local disadvantaged communities by increasing connectivity and accessibility to modal options,
including active transportation. In addition to the direct benefit of SR 29 users, there will be
significant benefit to non-motorized users of SR 20 within the “Main Street” communities listed
prior by encouraging interregional and truck traffic to utilize the Principal Arterial Corridor of SR
20/29/53. Route 20 experiences the highest Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) of the routes that
compose the PAC. This is due to a combination of local and interregional travelers. With the
planning emphasis on developing the North Shore as a livable/walkable destination, high traffic
volumes present particular challenges.

The project will reduce both collisions and congestion and improve efficiency of goods
movement. The current 2-lane highway has at-grade intersections, narrow shoulders, limited
passing opportunities, congestion and unstable traffic flow. It is not safely nor effectively
managing the current traffic flows, nor will it for anticipated traffic growth into the future.

Lake County economic development has been impeded by the difficulty of transporting goods
into and out of the county. The north shore communities along SR 20 are prime locations for
revitalization of the tourism and hospitality industry that thrived early in Lake County’s history.
Current traffic conditions on the north shore are impeding this revitalization. Along the north
shore, residences, schools, parks and shopping destinations are located adjacent to the
highway and the interregional and truck traffic moving through these communities has
negatively impacted the quality of life for residents and visitors with air pollution, noise and traffic
safety. SR 29 is better suited to manage interregional traffic as it does not serve as a main
street for any communities and adjacent land uses are mostly agricultural and industrial.

The benefits of a completed project are also in line with the Caltrans 2021 Interregional
Transportation Strategic Plan (ITSP), which identifies the SR 20/29/53 Principal Arterial Corridor
as a “Strategic Interregional Corridor”. According to the ITSP, the interregional facility “provides
the corridor with vital connections to the interstate system and the rest of the State, providing
access to basic goods and services along with routine and emergency medical services. Nearly
all segments of the SHS are identified as high wildfire exposure by 2055 in the 2019 Caltrans

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 19



Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment. This corridor would be the major transportation
corridor for response and recovery efforts in the event of emergencies such as forest fires. The
region and Lake County have experienced increased and high levels of wildland fire damage
with significant wildfires in Lake County in 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 burning over 600,000
acres. This project will help move people efficiently out of evacuation areas and provide efficient
mobility for emergency response.

Projects on the local street and road systems will provide both safety and circulation benefits
throughout the region. Complete streets and active transportation benefits will be provided
through inclusion of bike lanes, sidewalks and a third center lane which will improve safety
operations and provide multi-modal benefits in the two largest local road projects, the South
Main Street and Soda Bay Road Corridor improvement projects.

The Lakeport Boulevard Improvement Project will provide significant improvement to traffic flow
and reduction of congestion in a busy commercial area in the City of Lakeport. This project will
include improvements to important roadway segments for vehicles, pedestrians, bicyclists, local
residents, and business owners. Goals for this project will be to enhance traffic circulation,
relieve congestion, better accommodate forecasted traffic demands, create continuity for
pedestrians along both sides of Lakeport Boulevard and to create bike lanes. This project is
aligned with Caltrans’ Complete Streets Action Plan (CSAP) as well as compliments the new
Courthouse Project currently under design by the Judicial Counsel.

The Dam Road/Dam Road Extension Roundabout project will mainly address safety and
congestion relief for the City of Clearlake. The existing conditions at the proposed site are
unsafe at the intersection by causing traffic to back up onto SR53. The current unsignalized,
four-way stop, intersection continues to cause safety issues due to the increased congestion
from the opening of the nearby school and expansion of a nearby college. Congestion at the
intersection has created problems on both the local and state highway levels. The purpose of
this project is to improve traffic operations and flow, while enhancing accessibility, improving
safety as well as accommodating bicyclist and pedestrians.

The array of projects programmed in the RTIP serves a range of modes and provide a clear
benefit to both the region and the state.

D. Performance and Effectiveness of RTIP

Section 14. Evaluation of Cost Effectiveness of RTIP (Required per Section 22B)

The region is not currently collecting quantitative data related to the cost effectiveness indicators
listed in the RTIP template other than Pavement Condition Index on local streets and roads. We
have, therefore, developed the following qualitative evaluation of the RTIP using the Rural
Specific Cost Effectiveness Indicators.

Congestion Reduction: One of the projects included in this RTIP is an intersection improvement,
which will provide major improvements including a roundabout, sidewalks and bike lanes at a
congested intersection. This intersection is at a high volume location which experiences severe

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 20



congestion at peak times. It is currently controlled by signage only. These improvements will
significantly reduce vehicle idling and congestion at peak times without adding increased capacity.
Two of the projects in this RTIP will result in reduced congestion by providing enhanced bicycle
and pedestrian access through busy areas, encouraging greater use of these alternative forms of
transportation and less vehicular travel in congested areas. The Konocti Corridor will provide
passing opportunities to relieve congestion. The upgrade of this section of the Principal Arterial
Corridor will help to redirect truck traffic from the narrow and winding SR 20 that runs along the
north side of Clearlake.

Infrastructure Condition: The South Main & Soda Bay Road Corridor project will completely
reconstruct a length of a busy commercial corridor with a PCI of 43 (as of 2022). Although this
roughly 4-mile stretch of road will not make a significant change in the County’s overall PCl, it is
a significant regional route.

Safety: The roundabout project in the RTIP will result in fewer vehicle conflicts. Safety will also
be significantly improved for pedestrians in several of the projects that provide new or improved
sidewalks and safer crossings. The most significant safety improvement in the RTIP will be
provided by the Lake 29 Improvement project. The overall goal of the project is to improve safety
by conversion to freeway, which reduces conflicts and improves travel time reliability by providing
consistent, free-flow speeds through this segment of SR 29. This project will provide a 60%
improvement in safety along a stretch of highway which currently has accident rates that are
nearly six times the statewide average.

Environmental Sustainability: Nearly all of the projects in the RTIP will enhance environmental
sustainability in the region’s transportation system. New or enhanced pedestrian facilities will
increase mode share for walking and biking. Improved intersections will decrease idling, and
thereby, decrease greenhouse gas emissions. Encouraging the redirection of truck traffic from
SR 20, where the highway is “Main Street” for many communities will improve the environment
within those communities.

Section 15. Project Specific Evaluation (Required per Section 22C and 22D)

The APC is not proposing any new projects that require project specific evaluations.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 21



E. Detailed Project Information

Section 16. Overview of Projects Programmed with RTIP Funding

Provide project information per Section 48 of the STIP Guidelines.

For project locations, see maps in the Section 19 Appendix.

Prior FY FY FY FY FY
AEEIET | FReEET COMPONENT 26/27 | 27/28 | 28/29 | 29/30 | 30/31
Clearlake | Dam Rd/Dam Rd Extension E&P 211
Roundabout*®
PS&E 563
ROW 570
CON 2805
Lakeport | Lakeport Blvd Improvement CON 894
Project Phase 1
Caltrans | Lake 29 Expressway 2A PS&E 6000
Lake 29 Expressway 2B PS&E 6000
Lake South Main Street Corridor CON 4416
County Improvements™*
Soda Bay Road Corridor CON 662
Improvements™*
APC PPM CON 437 68 66 62 42 42
TOTAL PROPOSED 18859 3767 66 62 42 42
PROGRAMMING

*The 2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) identified a funding

commitment of up to $2,805,000 using the max net share identified in the 2026 STIP FE. We
will anticipate the unprogrammed balance of $5,558,000 will be allocated before the STIP is

adopted.

Project Funding Commitments

South Main Street/Soda Bay Road Corridor Improvements

$5,558,000

** The South Main Street/Soda Bay Road Corridor Improvement Project will allocate $5,558,000
from the target share in FY 25/26. A combined total of $5,031,000 was previously programmed

for FY 23/24 ($4,369,000 for South Main Street and $662,000 for Soda Bay Road). STIP
guidelines do not permit programming of funds in the current year. Therefore, an allocation for
the amount needed will be the mechanism for accessing these funds and thus will not be
reflected in the table above.

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 22




F. Appendices

Section 17. Projects Programming Request Forms (Provide Cover Sheet) — Regional
Agencies will add their PPRs in this section for each project included in the RTIP, whether it is a
project reprogrammed from the 2024 STIP, or a new project.

Section 18. Board Resolution or Documentation of 2026 RTIP Approval (Provide Cover
Sheet) — Agencies will add their resolution or meeting minutes.

Section 19. Fact Sheet (1-2 pages) (See Section 50) — The fact sheet will be posted on the
Commission’s website and must comply with state and federal web accessibility laws and
standards.

Section 20. Detailed Project Programming Summary Table

Section 21. Additional Appendices — Project Location Map

Regional Transportation Improvement Program Template - Page 23



Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/25
Agenda Item: #8

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

TITLE: Discussion and Possible Adoption of the DATE PREPARED: December 3, 2025
Regional Housing Needs Assessment Methodology MEETING DATE: December 10, 2025

SUBMITTED BY: John Speka, Senior Transportation Planner

BACKGROUND: The Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) process is used to develop a
projection of additional housing units needed to accommodate projected household growth of all income
levels for a set eight-year projection period (new cycle to cover 2027 to 2035).

Last month, staff discussed with the Board how the Department of Housing and Community Development
(HCD) was requiring revisions to Lake APC’s draft methodology before it could be accepted. It was also
noted that because State law required the methodology to be adopted prior to a region’s approval of its
Regional Transportation Plan, the December 10 target for RTP approval might need to be continued to a
later date.

After meeting with staff members from the region’s community development agencies, a revised
methodology was only recently submitted (December 4) and, as of this writing, has not been accepted by
HCD. Assuming a rather quick turnaround by HCD in accepting the revisions, staff is asking the Board to
consider adoption of the methodology at today’s meeting.

ACTION REQUIRED: Consider adoption of the Regional Housing Needs Assessment Methodology

ALTERNATIVES: None

RECOMMENDATION: The Board approves the Regional Housing Needs Assessment Methodology
as presented.



LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL

!
% |isa Davey-Bates, Executive Director 525 South Main Street, Ukiah, CA 95482
I_AKE APG www.lakeapc.org Administration: Suite G ~ 707-234-3314
Planning: Suite B ~ 707-263-7799

Lake County Regional Housing Needs Assessment Draft Methodology
December 2025

RHNA Overview

The Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) process is a State requirement that seeks to ensure
cities and counties are planning for enough housing to accommodate all economic segments of the
community. The process is split into three steps:

1. Regional Determination: The State Department of Housing and Community Development
(HCD) provides each region a Regional Determination of housing need, which includes a total
number of units split into six income categories. Lake APC received the Final Regional Housing
Need Determination of 2,498 in August 2025 for the upcoming 7® Cycle of RHNA (2027-2035).

2. RHNA Methodology: Councils of Governments are responsible for developing a RHNA
Methodology for allocating the Regional Determination to each jurisdiction in the region. This
methodology must further a series of State objectives.

3. Housing Element Updates: Each jurisdiction must then adopt a housing element that
demonstrates, among other things, how the jurisdiction can accommodate its assigned RHNA
number through its zoning. The State reviews each jurisdiction’s housing element for compliance.

The purpose of the RHNA process is to allocate a share of the housing need to the region’s jurisdictions
such that each plays a role in meeting the overall need and knows the clear, quantified amount it must
accommodate. The process is also used to guide where housing is built throughout the region, moving
away from a development pattern reflective of local zoning constraints and toward a growth pattern
reflective of regional and state equity, environmental, and socioeconomic objectives.

The methodology is itself developed in three phases: first, a proposed methodology is prepared and
undergoes a public hearing. The methodology may be revised based on any input received, then a draft
methodology is submitted to HCD for a 60-day review. Finally, the methodology may be revised to
respond to HCD’s findings, and a final methodology is adopted by resolution. Following adoption, the
final methodology is incorporated into a RHNA Plan document.

Housing need is allocated to jurisdictions across several income levels to provide a mix of household
affordability. These include:

Acutely Low: 15% of Area Median Income (AMI)
Extremely Low: 15-30% of AMI

Very Low: 30-50% of AMI

Low: 50-80% of AMI

Moderate: 80-120% of AMI

Above Moderate 120%+


http://www.lakeapc.org/

Allocation to Local Jurisdictions

While the RHNA process affects zoning, it does not directly mandate or fund the construction of the
assigned housing need. However, it is the intent of Housing Element law that it prompts jurisdictions to
prepare for their full housing need via zoning, as well as through adjacent actions such as accommodating
affordable housing development or analyzing construction feasibility during the Housing Element stage.
In developing the allocation methodology, Lake APC formed a “RHNA Methodology Committee” made
up of community development representatives from the County of Lake and the cities of Clearlake and
Lakeport, as a means of determining an equitable distribution among the region’s member agencies. The
following is a result of several of these committee meetings held between September and November 2025.

Population
A baseline figure was used as a hypothetical means of distribution to each of the region’s three

jurisdictions based on percentages derived from population estimates found in the California Department
of Finance (DOF) as of January 1, 2025 (see Table 1 below).

Table 1
2025 DOF Population Estimates
Jurisdiction Pop. % of Pop.
Clearlake 16,533 | 24.58%
Lakeport 5,026 | 7.47%
Unincorporated 45,695 | 67.94%
Total 67,254 | 100%

This baseline was helpful in determining a general proportionality of the region’s jurisdictions by
providing a starting point in which to evaluate the appropriate allocation of units. The percentages were
applied to each of the household affordability categories (as established by HCD in its regional needs
determination). Tables 2 and 3 illustrate the original HCD determination as well as the proportional
breakdown for the three jurisdictions.

Table 2
Original HCD Housing Need Determination
Income Category % Housing Unit Need
(% of Area Median Income)
Acutely Low (15%) 9.5% 237
Extremely Low (15-30%) 14.8% 370
Very Low (30-50%) 11.3% 283
Low (50-80%) 20.6% 514
Moderate (80-120%) 16.1% 403
Above Moderate (120%+) 27.7% 691
Total 100% 2,498




Table 3

Distribution Using Population
Income Category Housing Unit | Clearlake | Lakeport | Unincorporated
(% of Area Median Need per
Income) Population
Acutely Low (15%) 237 58 18 161
Extremely Low (15-30%) 370 91 28 251
Very Low (30-50%) 283 70 21 192
Low (50-80%) 514 126 38 349
Moderate (80-120%) 403 99 30 274
Above Moderate (120%+) 691 170 52 469
Total 2,498 614 187 1,687

Median Household Income Adjustment

Another set of data deemed important by the Methodology Committee was a breakdown by income

category of existing median household incomes for each of the three jurisdictions (HCD RHNA Final

Workbook). The City of Clearlake was found to have a disproportionate share of units available for
acutely-, extremely-, and very-low income residents when compared to regional averages, combined with

a significant lack of above-moderate units. Table 4 shows income levels by jurisdiction with regional

totals found in the two right hand columns. Table 5 provides the comparisons between jurisdictions and

regional averages.

Table 4
Household Income Levels
Clearlake Lakeport Unincorporated Total
Category | Households | % | Households | % | Households | % | Households | %
Acutely 835 14.8% 18 161 1,484 8.0% 2,497 9.5%
Low
Extremely 1,105 19.6% 28 251 2,440 13.2% 3,908 14.8%
Low
Very Low 891 15.8% 21 192 1,926 10.4% 2,988 11.3%
Low 1,306 23.1% 38 349 3,635 19.6% 5,421 20.6%
Moderate 748 13.2% 30 274 3,098 16.7% 4,256 16.1%
Above 763 13.5% 52 469 5,958 32.1% 7,294 27.7%
Moderate
Total 5,649 100% 187 100% 18,542 100% 26,364 100%
Table S
% Adjustment from MHI
Categories Clearlake Lakeport Unincorporated
Acutely Low 5.3% -1.3% -1.5%
Extremely Low 4.7% 1.9% -1.7%
Very Low 4.4% -3.5% -0.9%
Low 2.6% 1.5% -1.0%
Moderate -2.9% 2.7% 0.6%
Above Moderate -14.2% -1.3% 4.5%




The resulting percentage adjustments would be added/subtracted from the baseline (population) figures as
a means of balancing the current shares by income category within each jurisdiction. This addresses
Objectives (1) and (4) of Government Code Section 65584(d), which seek an increase in housing supply
and mix of “housing types, tenure, and affordability in all cities and counties within the region in an
equitable manner,” as well as the proportionate allocation of housing need by income category.

Overcrowding and Cost Burden Adjustments

The Methodology Committee next evaluated overcrowding and cost burden data for the region. Similar to
the regional averages and jurisdictional deviations for the MHI adjustments above, both “overcrowding”
and “cost burden” percentage for each jurisdiction were identified and compared to the region as a whole
(HCD RHNA Final Workbook). The differences in percentage terms were then applied to the same
household income breakdown used above (see Table 4) to arrive at a further adjustment by jurisdiction as
shown in the three tables below.

Table 6
Additional % Adjustment Factors
Categories Clearlake Lakeport Unincorporated
Overcrowding 3.5% -2.5% -0.8%
Cost Burden 8.2% -5.5% -1.7%
Table 7
% Adjustment from Overcrowding
Categories Clearlake Lakeport Unincorporated
Acutely Low 0.5% -0.2% -0.1%
Extremely Low 0.7% -0.4% -0.1%
Very Low 0.6% -0.2% -0.1%
Low 0.8% -0.5% -0.2%
Moderate 0.5% -0.5% -0.1%
Above Moderate 0.5% -0.6% -0.3%
Table 8
% Adjustment from Cost Burden
Categories Clearlake Lakeport Unincorporated
Acutely Low 1.2% -0.5% -0.1%
Extremely Low 1.6% -0.9% -0.2%
Very Low 1.3% -0.4% -0.2%
Low 1.9% -1.2% -0.3%
Moderate 1.1% -1.0% -0.3%
Above Moderate 1.1% -1.5% -0.6%

Overcrowding and Cost Burden metrics can both be used as measures of affordability. An increase in the
housing supply as well as a healthy mix of housing types can work to alleviate these dual barriers,
consistent with Government Code Section 65584(d) Objective (1), as well as speaking to “factors”
discussed under Section 65584.04(e)(6)(cost burden) and (7)(overcrowding).



Manual Adjustments

Finally, discussions among Methodology Committee members centered on the potential for further
“manual” adjustments to be made in order for additional acutely-, extremely-, very-, and low-income
units to be assigned to jurisdictions having higher levels of “opportunity” for lower resourced residents.
Measurements of educational, economic, and environmental “opportunities” are provided in the 2025
Opportunity Map (CTAC/HCD), which identifies Census Block Groups with higher or lower resources
associated with positive economic, educational, and health outcomes for low-income families.

“Neighborhood Opportunity” scores among the three jurisdictions show the City of Lakeport to be the
most accommodating of the three with an average of 7.5, compared to the unincorporated County at 5.5,
and the City of Clearlake at 1.5. Given the MHI disparities described earlier, representatives from both the
City of Lakeport and the County of Lake were comfortable in having additional adjustments made to
accommodate more low-income households relative to the City of Clearlake, where opportunity resources
are more limited. This targeted adjustment aligns with and advances the State’s Affirmatively Furthering
Fair Housing (AFFH) objectives by directing more lower-income capacity toward higher-opportunity
neighborhoods, while avoiding unjustified concentration in lower-opportunity areas. Any adjustments
made with regard to extremely- and acutely-low income units will remain within a range of 3% of those
assigned for very-low income households, consistent with language found in Objective (1)

Consistency with State Housing Law

California Government Code Section 65584.04(b) requires that each Council of Government “survey” its
member jurisdictions for information in its development of a RHNA methodology. Accordingly, a
Methodology Committee was formed from representatives of the Lake region’s three community
development agencies: the County of Lake, and the cities of Lakeport and Clearlake. Several meetings
were held to discuss various requirements and other issues involved in formulating an appropriate
methodology. These discussions resulted in the methodology discussed herein, incorporating additional
information to demonstrate compliance with State objectives and aims with respect to housing policy.

RHNA Objectives

State Housing Law also requires a RHNA methodology to further five specific “objectives,” per
Government Code Section 65584(d). The objectives listed below include a brief discussion of how they
have been addressed within the methodology:

1. Increasing the housing supply and the mix of housing types, tenure, and affordability in all cities
and counties within the region in an equitable manner, which shall result in each jurisdiction
receiving an allocation of units for low- and very low income households. The regional housing
needs allocation plan shall allocate units for extremely low- and acutely low income households in a
manner that is roughly proportional to, and within a range of 3 percent of, the housing need for
very low income households.

As previously discussed, the methodology includes several adjustment factors designed to consider
equitable distribution of units for various income specific categories. For instance, data on the median
household income (MHI) of existing units will be used to adjust the final allocation in order to bring local
housing markets into balance with respect to the six income levels. In addition, jurisdictional deviation

over or below average Overcrowding and Cost Burden factors will also be used to “level the playing
field.”

2. Promoting infill development and socioeconomic equity, the protection of environmental and
agricultural resources, the encouragement of efficient development patterns, and the achievement



of the region’s greenhouse gas reductions targets provided by the State Air Resources Board
pursuant to Section 65080.

Equity, efficiency, and environmental matters were included in developing the methodology by
considering “opportunity” scores in the final allocation. The City of Lakeport currently enjoys more
general amenities (e.g. job concentration, services, educational opportunities, etc.) than the County or the
City of Clearlake, and City representatives have expressed a willingness to take a larger share of acutely-,
extremely-, and very low income units via “manual adjustments” to be applied at the end of the process.
Conversely, with the City of Clearlake seeking a larger share of above-moderate accommodations, higher
skilled, better paid professionals may be able to locate within the City shortening commute times and
reducing vehicle miles traveled or greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions related impacts.

3. Promoting an improved intraregional relationship between jobs and housing, including an
improved balance between the number of low-wage jobs and the number of housing units
affordable to low-wage workers in each jurisdiction.

Similar to the discussion under objective (2) above, the methodology includes efforts to balance jobs and
housing within the region. As noted earlier, the jurisdiction with the highest “neighborhood opportunity”
score in the online 2025 Opportunity Mapping Tool was Lakeport by a fair amount (7.5, compared to the
County and Clearlake scores of 5.5 and 1.5, respectively). Its willingness to consider accommodating
higher shares of lower income household units advances this objective.

4. Allocating a lower proportion of housing need to an income category when a jurisdiction already
has a disproportionately high share of households in that income category, as compared to the
countywide distribution of households in that category from the most recent American Community
Survey.

Median household income levels for existing households in each jurisdiction were analyzed finding the
City of Clearlake to hold smaller shares of above-moderate units and a disproportionately large
percentages of acutely-, extremely-, very-, and low-income units. The methodology supports this
objective by aiming to correct noted imbalances (assigning more/fewer units of each income category
between Clearlake, Lakeport and the County), where deemed appropriate.

5. Affirmatively furthering fair housing.
Government Code Section 65584(e) defines “affirmatively furthering fair housing” (AFFH) as

taking meaningful actions, in addition to combating discrimination, that overcome patterns of
segregation and foster inclusive communities free from barriers that restrict access to opportunity
based on protected characteristics. Specifically, affirmatively furthering fair housing means taking
meaningful actions that, taken together, address significant disparities in housing needs and in
access to opportunity, replacing segregated living patterns with truly integrated and balanced
living patterns, transforming racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty into areas of
opportunity, and fostering and maintaining compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws.

The 2025 Opportunity Mapping Tool discussed within this methodology was used to evaluate “disparities
in housing needs and in access to opportunity” for all residents of the region, regardless of race or
ethnicity, in an effort to equalize the allocation of income tiered units among the subject jurisdictions.
The intention is to incorporate AFFH concepts into its overall distribution.



Factors Included in Development of Methodology

Government Code Section 65584.04 includes language requiring a council of governments (Lake APC) to
consider 13 factors in developing an allocation methodology for regional housing needs. The following
list provides a brief summary of these considerations, based on information received from the region’s
three jurisdictions:

1. Relationship between existing and projected jobs and housing affordability.

Specific data on local “jobs/housing affordability” balances were not available for either the region as a
whole or for individual local jurisdictions. An “On the Map- Longitudinal Employer-Household
Dynamics (LEHD)” tool (2022), showed Lakeport to have a disproportionately large share of the region’s
jobs. However, more recent data sources such as the American Community Survey (2023 5-year
averages) and the California Economic Development Department (2025) both contradicted this 2022
assessment, instead showing the breakdown to be roughly in line with relative population percentages of
the jurisdictions. As a result, the Methodology Committee chose to look at other factors in determining
the final allocation.

2. Constraints due to the availability of sewer, water, developable land, land preservation policies,
emergency evacuation route capabilities or other climate change risks.

Data was not available, nor provided by local community development agencies with respect to
constraints based on infrastructure availability or development policy. Given the hypothetical distribution
of units from factors that were used, Committee members did not feel these to be significant obstacles to
overcome in determining the final allocations.

3. Distribution of household growth as a means of maximizing public transportation or existing
transportation infrastructure.

Infill development is emphasized in policy language found within the current housing elements of the
region’s local agencies, and will continue to be a consideration when determining residential zoning
objectives within each jurisdiction. However, growth rates overall are expected to remain flat over the
next decade, and the existing transportation infrastructure will be able to accommodate housing
production scenarios over this span.

4. Agreements between jurisdictions directing growth toward incorporated areas and away from
areas used for agricultural purposes.

While no official growth boundary agreements exist between jurisdictions, policies within current housing
elements, as well those in the recently (August 2025) adopted “Housing Action and Implementation Plan
(HAIP),” contain language directing growth inward, towards established communities and away from
agricultural or rural areas.

5. Loss of units contained in assisted housing developments.
Data was not available regarding assisted housing developments and Methodology Committee members
did not consider this a significant factor in determining the allocation of housing units.

6. Housing cost burdens at each relevant income level.

While information was not available from local agencies with respect to housing cost burden, data used
by HCD to calculate the initial housing needs of the region found this to be a significant factor in its
overall assessment. Relative cost burdens for homeowners and renters were considered and adjustments
will be made to the number of units assigned to the three jurisdictions as broken down by household
income category for each.



7. Rate of overcrowding.

Similar to cost burden factors, relative rates of overcrowding were considered and adjustments will be
made to the number of units assigned to the three jurisdictions as broken down by household income
category for each.

8. Housing needs of farmworkers.
Data was not available regarding farmworker housing and Methodology Committee members did not
consider this a significant factor in determining the allocation of housing units.

9. Housing needs of college students at private schools, state schools, or universities.

Woodland Community College (Lake County campus) in Clearlake, and Mendocino College (Lake
Center) in Lakeport are largely considered to be “commuter” schools and these student populations are
not expected to have a large impact on housing needs within the region.

10. Housing needs of individuals and families experiencing homelessness.
Data was not available regarding homelessness and Methodology Committee members did not consider
this a significant factor in determining the allocation of housing units.

11. Loss of units during a state emergency during the previous (current) planning period that have
yet to be rebuilt.

Data was not available regarding wildfire or other natural disasters and Methodology Committee
members did not consider this a significant factor in determining the allocation of housing units.

12. Consideration of the region’s greenhouse gas emission targets.

Information was not received by local agencies. Greenhouse Gas emissions aren’t expected to reach a
level of significance in the Lake County region given the flat growth rates and smaller existing population
numbers.

13. Other factors adopted by the Lake APC.
No other policy factors have been adopted by Lake APC with respect to housing needs allocation.



Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/25
Agenda tem: #9

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

TITLE: Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation Plan DATE PREPARED: December 3, 2025
MEETING DATE: December 10, 2025

SUBMITTED BY: John Speka, Senior Transportation Planner

BACKGROUND: The Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation Plan (RTP/ATP) is the
region’s long-term planning document covering a 20-year time span intended to promote a safe and
efficient transportation system for the movement of people and goods throughout the region. The
primary purpose of the plan is to identify transportation needs and priority projects in all modes of
transportation including streets, highways, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, aviation and transit. Updated
every four years, the RTP/ATP covers present and future transportation needs, deficiencies and
constraints, as well as providing estimates of available funding for future transportation projects in the
region.

On October 16, 2025, staff released the Public Draft RTP/ATP, which can be found on the APC
website at:
https://www.lakeapc.org/news/2026-regional-transportation-plan-active-transportation-plan-update /.
Staff presented the draft at the November 12 Board meeting. As part of the public outreach process, staff
hosted a virtual tribal workshop on October 21, and two in-person Countywide public workshops on
October 22 (Lakeport) and October 23 (Clearlake). Public comments will also be accepted at the public
hearing at this meeting. Following the public hearing, APC staff will incorporate comments as
appropriate into a final draft, which will then be presented to the Board for adoption at the February 11,
2026, meeting,.

Following release of the public draft, staff prepared the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Document, an Initial Study/Negative Declaration, for the RTP/ATP which was distributed for review
and comment through the State Clearinghouse and posted on the APC website.

At this meeting, a public hearing will be held to receive comments on the Negative Declaration and the
2026 Regional Transportation Plan and Active Transportation Plan. Prior to adoption of the Plan at the
February 11, 2026 Board meeting, the APC Board must consider the Negative Declaration and any
comments received. Upon finding that there is no substantial evidence that adoption of the Plan will
have a significant effect on the environment, the Board may then approve the Negative Declaration.

ACTION REQUIRED:
1. Make a finding that proper notice of the meeting has been provided. Notice was published in the
Lake County Record-Bee on 10/24/25.

2. Receive staff report.

3. Open public hearing.

4. Receive public comments.

5. Close public hearing.

6. Consider Approval of Negative Declaration — Upon finding that there is no substantial evidence that

adoption of the 2026 Regional Transportation and Active Transportation Plan will have a significant
effect on the environment, approve the Negative Declaration.


https://www.lakeapc.org/news/2026-regional-transportation-plan-active-transportation-plan-update/

7. Continue hearing on adoption of the 2026 Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation
Plan to the February 11, 2026, APC Board meeting.

ALTERNATIVES: Continue adoption of the RTP/ATP Negative Declaration to the February 11,
2026, APC Board Meeting (not recommended).

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Upon finding that there is no substantial evidence that the 2026 Regional Transportation Plan and
Active Transportation Plan will have a significant effect on the environment, approve the Negative
Declaration.

2. Continue adoption of the 2026 Regional Transportation Plan and Active Transportation Plan to the
February 11, 2026, APC Board meeting.



Lake County Publishing

Lake County Record-Bee

415 Talmage Road Suite A
Ukiah, CA. 95482
legals@record-bee.com

2117222

DOW & ASSOCIATES
525 S MAIN STREET SUITE B
UKIAH, CA 95482

Affidavit of Publication
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
County of Lake

I, Sue Fullbright, being first duly sworn, depose and say: That at and
during all the dates and times herein mentioned | was, and now am
the legal clerk of the Lake County Record-Bee, a newspaper published
for the dissemination of local or telegraphic news and intelligence of a
general character, having a bona fide subscription list of paying
subscribers, and which is, and has been, established, printed and
published at regular intervals, to-wit: Daily (except Sunday and
Monday) in the City of Lakeport, County and State aforesaid, for more
than one year preceding the date of the publication below mentioned,
a newspaper of general circulation, as that term is defined by Section
6,000 et al, of the Government Code of the State of California, and is
not and was not during any said times, a newspaper devoted to the
interests or denomination, or for any members of such classes,
professions, trades, callings, races or denominations.

That at, and during all of said dates and times herein mentioned,
affiant had and now has knowledge and charge of all notes and
advertisements appearing in said newspaper; that the notice of which
the annexed is printed copy, was published each week in the regular
and entire issue of one or more number of the said newspaper during
the period and times of publication thereof, to-wit:

For 1 issue published therein on the following date, viz: 10/24/2025;

that said notice was published in said newspaper proper and not in a
supplement; that said notice, as so published, was set in type not
smaller than nonpareil, and was preceded with words printed in black
face type not smaller than nonpareil, describing and expressing in
general terms the purport and character of said notice, as fully
appears from the exact copy of said notice, which is hereto annexed
as aforesaid.

Executed this 24th day of October, 2025 at Lakeport, California. |

hereby declare under penalty of perjury that | have read the foregoing
and that it is true and correct.

Sue Fullbright, Legal Clerk

r.BP13-07/12/17

Legal No.

LEGAL NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND
AVAILABILITY OF DRAFT
NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR PUBLIC REVIEW

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Lake Area
Planning Council (APC) will meet on Monday,
December 10, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. or as soon
thereafter as possible, to conduct a public
hearing on the following project and the Draft
Negative Declaration:

Project Title: 2026 Lake County Regional
Tlransportation Plan/Active Transportation
Plan

Project Description: The 2026 Regional Trans-
portation Plan/Active Transportation Plan
(RTP/ATP) is a transportation planning docu-
ment prepared by the Lake Area Planning
Council. The Plan provides a vision of regional
transportation goals, policies and objectives
for all modes of travel, including local streets
and roads, State highways, public transit, bi-
cycle, pedestrian and aviation. It assesses
current transportation, identifies needs and
problems, and suggests actions to solve
these problems and improve transportation
throughout the region. The plan also consid-
ers financing options in relation to projects
discussed within the plan.

Project Location: All of Lake County, including
the cities of Lakeport and Clearlake.
Environmental Determination: The Lake Area
Planning Council has prepared a Draft Nega-
tive Declaration for the above project.

Review Period: The public review period shall
begin on October 24, 2025, and end on Decem-
ber 1, 2025.

Your comments regarding the RTP/ATP
and/or Negative Declaration are invited. Writ-
ten comments should be submitted to the
Lake County/City Area Planning Council, 525
S. Main St, Ste. B, Ukiah, CA, 95482, no later
than December 9, 2025. Oral comments may
be presented at the public hearing.
Comments may also be presented at the pub-
lic hearing. For additional information, please
contact John Speka (spekaj@dow-associates.
com) at the Lake Area Planning Council, 707-
234-3314.

JOHN SPEKA, Senior Transportation Planner
10-24/2025

0006927572



CEQA Document- Initial Study/Negative Declaration

DATE: October 14, 2025

PROJECT TITLE: 2026 Lake County Regional Transportation Plan/
Active Transportation Plan

LEAD AGENCY: Lake County/City Area Planning Council (APC)
525 South Main Street, Suite B
Ukiah, CA 95482

CONTACT PERSON: Lisa-Davey Bates, APC Executive Director, 707-234-3314
John Speka, Senior Transportation Planner, 707-234-3314

PROJECT LOCATION: The Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation
Plan covers the entire County-wide area, including the
incorporated cities of Clearlake and Lakeport.

PROJECT SPONSOR: Lake County/City Area Planning Council
525 South Main Street, Suite B
Ukiah, CA 95482

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation Plan
(RTP/ATP) update is a transportation planning document prepared by the Lake County/City Area
Planning Council (APC). The Plan provides an overview of both short- and long-term transportation
goals, objectives and policies for the region, as well as a list of potential projects intended for
implementation. The RTP/ATP considers all modes of transportation including automobile, trucking,
bicycle, pedestrian, air, public transit, and any related facilities needed for an effective transportation
system. The Plan also assesses current and long-range transportation issues, identifies needs and
deficiencies, considers funding options and suggests actions to address these items, in an effort to
improve the overall transportation system in the region. While it is intended to guide transportation
decision making over a 20-year planning horizon, it does not necessarily require that projects
recommended in the document become implemented. Such decisions are instead made by jurisdictional
authorities with discretionary control over subject facilities such as Caltrans, local streets and roads
departments, or regional tribal leaders, based on a variety of factors (e.g. budgetary constraints, local
priorities, environmental considerations, etc.) specific to local or regional needs.

SETTING: Lake County is located in Northern California, lying within the Pacific Coastal ranges
between the counties of Mendocino and Sonoma to the west, and Glenn, Colusa, Yolo and Napa to the
east and south. The County consists largely of mountainous terrain and resource lands surrounding Clear
Lake, its primary geographic feature. The lake itself covers approximately five percent of the land area
and includes a majority of the County’s population centers along its shores. Much of the northern third
of the County is unoccupied and lies within the Mendocino National Forest, while the rural southern
portions are made up of sparsely populated communities divided among agricultural and other resource
lands.



OTHER NECESSARY APPROVALS: Projects listed in the RTP/ATP will be undertaken by
individual agencies within the region (e.g. Caltrans, public works, tribal authorities, transit agency, etc.)
and may require approvals from responsible or trustee agencies (e.g. California Department of Fish and
Wildlife, California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Army Corps of Engineers, etc.). No other
approvals are required for adoption of the RTP/ATP.

NATIVE AMERICAN CONSULTATION: California Native American tribes traditionally and
culturally affiliated with the project area were notified at the carliest stages of the RTP/ATP’s
development, with offers for individual consultation between the Lead Agency and the tribes. No
requests for consultation were received from tribal representatives notified of the Plan, pursuant to
Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.1.

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: The environmental factors checked
below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that is a "Potentially
Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

DXlAesthetics &é‘gsrj)cuurtgsre and Forestry D<Air Quality

X|Biological Resources XCultural Resources [ |Energy

&‘Geology/Soils &‘Greenhouse Gas Emissions [ JHazards and Hazardous Materials
g|Hydrology/Water Quality |E|Land Use/Planning XMineral Resources

&|Noise [ JPopulation/Housing [ JIPublic Services

D‘Recreation D{|[Transportation DX][Tribal Cultural Resources
[]Vtilities/Service Systems [X]Wildfire X g/ilggici?iz%gindings of

“Significant effect on the environment” means a substantial, or potentially substantial, adverse
change in any of the physical conditions within the area affected by the project, including land,
air, water, minerals, flora, fauna, ambient noise, and aesthetic significance. An economic or
social change by itself shall not be considered a significant effect on the environment. A social
or economic change related to a physical change, may be considered in determining whether the
physical change is significant (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15382).

INITIAL STUDY/EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS:

An explanation for all checklist responses is included, and all answers take into account the whole action
involved, including off site as well as on-site; cumulative as well as project level; indirect as well as
direct; and construction as well as operational impacts. The explanation of each issue identifies (a) the
significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and (b) the mitigation measure
identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. In the checklist the following definitions
are used:

"Potentially Significant Impact" means there is substantial evidence that an effect may be
significant.



"Potentially Significant Unless Mitigation Incorporated” means the incorporation of one
or more mitigation measures can reduce the effect from potentially significant to a less than
significant level.

“Less Than Significant Impact” means that the effect is less than significant and no
mitigation is necessary to reduce the impact to a lesser level.

“No Impact” means that the effect does not apply to the Project, or clearly will not impact
nor be impacted by the Project.

INITIAL STUDY/ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: This section assesses the potential environmental
impacts which may result from the project. Questions in the Initial Study Checklist are stated and
answers are provided based on analysis undertaken.

| AESTHETICS. Potentially | =65 Than | oo Than
. - - o Significant with| o=~ . No
Except as provided in Public Resources | Significant R Significant
. . Mitigation Impact
Code Section 21099, would the project: Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a [] [] [] X
scenic vista?
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, [] [] [] X

including, but not limited to, trees, rock
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a
state scenic highway?

¢) In nonurbanized areas, substantially [] [] [] X
degrade the existing visual character or
quality of public views of the site and its
surroundings? (Public views are those that
are experienced from publicly accessible
vantage point). If the project is in an
urbanized area, would the project conflict
with applicable zoning and other regulations
governing scenic quality?

d) Create a new source of substantial light or [] [] [] X
glare which would adversely affect day or
nighttime views in the area?

a) through d) No Impact- The Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation Plan (RTP/ATP) is
a program level document, which includes a general overview of both short- and long-range projects
expected to be implemented over time. Its adoption will not result in specific impacts to scenic
resources, although individual projects included within the Plan may, if implemented, include
potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of the transportation system in the Lake County region is
pre-existing with many of the projects included in the RTP/ATP involving improvements or
maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the Plan, such as grading, road widening and
expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new road projects are presently only conceptual in
nature and will involve a project level evaluation of scenic as well as light and/or glare impacts at the
time of design. There are no designated State Scenic Highways in Lake County.



1. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY
RESOURCES. Would the project:

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

Incorporated
a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique [] [] [] X
Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide
Importance (Farmland), as shown on the
maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland
Mapping and Monitoring Program of the
California Resources Agency, to non-
agricultural use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for [] [] [] X
agricultural use, or a Williamson Act
contract?

¢) Conflict with existing zoning for, or [] [] [] X
cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in
Public Resources Code section 12220(g)),
timberland (as defined by Public Resources
Code section 4526), or timberland zoned
Timberland Production (as defined by
Government Code section 51104(g))?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?
e) Involve other changes in the existing
environment which, due to their location or
nature, could result in conversion of
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

[
[
[
X

[
[
[
X

a) through e) No Impact- The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Its adoption will
not result in specific impacts to agricultural or forestland resources, although individual projects
included within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. Projects involving
grading, widening or expansion of streets, roads or highways may entail the acquisition of additional
right-of-way, which could include marginal degrees of resource land conversion depending on the
setting. In these cases, potentially adverse effects will be analyzed and appropriate mitigation measures
will be recommended at the time of project development.



. AIR QUALITY.
Where available, the significance criteria _ Less Than
established by the applicable air quality | Potentially | Significant | Less Than No
management or air pollution control Significant ‘with Significant Impact
district may be relied upon to make the Impact Mitigation Impact
following determinations. Would the Incorporated
project:
a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation [] [] [] 4
of any applicable air quality plan?
b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net [] [] [] X
increase of any criteria pollutant for which
the project region is non-attainment under
an applicable federal or state ambient air
quality standard?
¢) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial [] [] [] X
pollutant concentrations?
d) Result in other emissions (such as those [] [] [] X
leading to odors) adversely affecting a
substantial number of people?

a) through d) No Impact- Adoption of the RTP/ATP would not conflict with local air quality plans or
create objectionable odors, nor are projects contained in the Plan, upon implementation, expected to
have any substantial impacts on local air quality. The Lake County Air Basin has been designated as an
“attainment” area with respect to each of the (10) State and (6) national area criteria pollutants including
ozone, suspended particulate matter (PM10), fine suspended particulate matter (PM2.5), carbon
monoxide, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, sulfates, lead, hydrogen sulfide and visibility reducing
particles. Potentially adverse effects resulting from individual projects within the Plan will be analyzed
and appropriate mitigation measures will be recommended at the time of design. Short term impacts that
may result from local construction activities will not affect overall air quality in the region, which is
considered to be among the cleanest in the nation. In addition, components of the Plan (e.g. Transit
Element, Active Transportation Element, etc.) include goals and policies intended to reduce dependency
on automobile travel, traffic related congestion and vehicle miles traveled, to the overall benefit of local
and regional air quality.

Less Than

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCEs, | Rotentially | i igicane | Less Than 1,
——— Significant | . R Significant
Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either [] [] [] X

directly or through habitat modifications, on
any species identified as a candidate,
sensitive, or special status species in local or
regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by
the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?




b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any [] [] [] X
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional
plans, policies, regulations or by the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife
or US Fish and Wildlife Service?

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on [] [] [] X
federally protected wetlands (including, but
not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal,
etc.) through direct removal, filling,
hydrological interruption, or other means?
d) Interfere substantially with the movement [] ] ] X
of any native resident or migratory fish or
wildlife species or with established native
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or
impede the use of native wildlife nursery
sites?

e) Conflict with any local policies or [] [] [] X
ordinances protecting biological resources,
such as a tree preservation policy or
ordinance?

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted [] [] [] X
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural
Community Conservation Plan, or other
approved local, regional, or state habitat
conservation plan?

a) through f) No Impact- The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in specific impacts to biological resources, although individual projects
included within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of
the transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in
the RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within
the Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new
road projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of
impacts to sensitive or special status species, riparian habitat, sensitive natural communities, wetlands,
native resident, migratory species, or other biological resources, at the time of design. In these cases,
potentially adverse effects will be analyzed and appropriate mitigation measures will be recommended
at the time of project development. Likewise, consistency with all local policies or approved local,
regional or State habitat conservation plans will be addressed during the design phase of the proposed
projects.



Less Than

Potentially Less Than

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Sianificant Significant Sianificant No
Would the project: g with Mitigation g Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the [] [] [] X

significance of a historical resource as
defined in § 15064.5?

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the [] [] [] X
significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to § 15064.5?

¢) Disturb any human remains, including [] [] [] X
those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

a) through c¢) No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in specific impacts to cultural resources, although individual projects included
within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of the
transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in the
RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the
Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of- way acquisition, new structures or new
road projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of
potential impacts to historical and archaeological resources, or disturbance of human remains outside of
formal cemeteries, at the time of design.

Less Than
VI. ENERGY. Potentially | Significant Less Than No
Would the project: Significant with Significant
e Impact
Impact Mitigation Impact
Incorporated
a) Result in potentially significant ] ] ] X
environmental impact due to wasteful,
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of
energy resources, during project
construction or operation?
b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local [] [] [] X
plan for renewable energy or energy
efficiency?

a) and b) No Impact- The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general overview
of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the RTP/ATP
will not result in specific energy related impacts, although individual projects included within the Plan
may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of the transportation system
in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in the RTP/ATP involving
improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the Plan, such as grading,
road widening and expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new road projects are presently
only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of potential impacts resulting from
wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, at the time of design.




Less Than

VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS, Potentially | - ;o ificant | Less Than |,
—— Significant | . R Significant
Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Directly or indirectly cause potential [] [] [] X

substantial adverse effects, including the risk
of loss, injury, or death involving:

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as [] [] [] X
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map, issued by the
State Geologist for the area or based on other
substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer
to Division of Mines and Geology Special
Publication 42,

i) Strong seismic ground shaking?

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including
liquefaction?

iv) Landslides?

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the
loss of topsoil?

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is
unstable, or that would become unstable as a
result of the project, and potentially result in
on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading,
subsidence, liguefaction or collapse?

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in [] [] [] X
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code
(1994), creating substantial risks to life or
property?

e) Have soils incapable of adequately [] [] [] X
supporting the use of septic tanks or
alternative waste water disposal systems
where sewers are not available for the
disposal of waste water?

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique [] [] [] X
paleontological resource or site or unique
geologic feature?

NN
NN
NN
X XX XX

a) through f) No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in specific impacts to geology and soils, although individual projects included
within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of the
transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in the
RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the
Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of- way acquisition, new structures or new
road projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of



impacts related to exposure to fault ruptures, ground shaking, slides, erosion or soils capability, or
potential impacts to unique paleontological resources, sites or unique geologic features, at the time of
design.

Less Than

VI11. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS, | Rotentially | oio igicant | LessThan |,
—— Significant | . R Significant
Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either [] [] [] X

directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment?
b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or [] [] [] X
regulation adopted for the purpose of
reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

a) and b) No Impact — Certain projects included within the RTP/ATP may involve roadway capacity
increases, although, given the small and rural nature of the region, they are usually intended more for
safety or multi-modal considerations and are unlikely to lead to additional automobile traffic. Potentially
adverse effects resulting from individual projects within the Plan will be analyzed and appropriate
mitigation measures will be recommended at the time of design. The Goals, Objectives, Policies section
of the RTP/ATP includes policies intended to reduce GHGs by prioritizing transportation projects which
lead to reduced greenhouse gas emissions. Goals and policies also support and encourage expanding
opportunities for utilizing transit, active transportation, and the use of zero emission vehicles.

Potentially I__ess_'l_'han Less Than
IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS Significant Significant Significant No
MATERIALS. Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or [] [] [] X
the environment through the routine
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous
materials?
b) Create a significant hazard to the public or [] [] [] X

the environment through reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident conditions
involving the release of hazardous materials
into the environment?

¢) Emit hazardous emissions or handle [] [] [] X
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials,
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile
of an existing or proposed school?

d) Be located on a site which is included on a [] [] [] X
list of hazardous materials sites compiled
pursuant to Government Code Section
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a
significant hazard to the public or the




Less Than

Potentially Less Than

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS Significant Significant Significant No
MATERIALS. Would the project: g with Mitigation g Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
environment?
e) For a project located within an airport land [] [] [] X

use plan or, where such a plan has not been
adopted, within two miles of a public airport
or public use airport, would the project result
in a safety hazard for people residing or
working in the project area?

f) Impair implementation of or physically [] [] [] X
interfere with an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

g) Expose people or structures, either directly [] [] [] X
or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss,
injury or death involving wildland fires?

a) through g) No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in specific risks involving hazardous materials or situations, although
individual projects included within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects.
The vast majority of the transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of
the projects included in the RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other
projects discussed within the Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way
acquisition, new structures or new road projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve
a project level evaluation of impacts involving the transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials, or
other conditions which would expose people or structures to hazardous materials or situations, at the
time of design.

Potentially I__ess_'l_'han Less Than
X.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER Significant Significant Significant No
QUALITY. Would the project: g with Mitigation g Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Violate any water quality standards or [] [] [] =4
waste discharge requirements or otherwise
substantially degrade surface or ground water
quality?
b) Substantially decrease groundwater [] [] [] X
supplies or interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge such that the project
may impede sustainable groundwater
management of the basin?




X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER

QUALITY. Would the project:

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
with Mitigation
Incorporated

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage
pattern of the site or area, including through
the alteration of the course of a stream or
river or through the addition of impervious
surfaces, in a manner which would:

L]

L]

L]

1) result in a substantial erosion or siltation
on- or off-site;

[

[

[

X

ii) substantially increase the rate or amount
of surface runoff in a manner which would
result in flooding on- or offsite;

[

[

[

X

iii) create or contribute runoff water which
would exceed the capacity of existing or
planned stormwater drainage systems or
provide substantial additional sources of
polluted runoff; or

iv) impede or redirect flood flows?

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones,
risk release of pollutants due to project
inundation?

L]
L]

|

|

XX

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation
of a water quality control plan or sustainable
groundwater management plan?

L]

L]

L]

X

a) through e) No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in impacts to water quality or hydrology, although individual projects included
within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of the
transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in the
RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the
Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new road
projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of impacts
involving existing drainage patterns, additional surface or polluted runoff, increases in pollutant
discharges, or additions to potential flood hazards, at the time of design.

Potentiall Less Than Less Than
XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING. otentially Significant T No

—— Significant | . L Significant

Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Physically divide an established [] [] [] X
community?

b) Cause a significant environmental impact [] [] [] =4

due to a conflict with any land use plan,
policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose




of avoiding or mitigating an environmental
effect?

a) and b) No Impact - Adoption of the RTP/ATP would not conflict with existing general, area or
specific plans or zoning ordinances within the region. The RTP/ATP is a program level document,
which includes a general overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented
over time. The vast majority of the transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with
many of the projects included in the RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system.
Other projects discussed within the Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way
acquisition, new structures or new road projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve
a project level consistency evaluation at the time of design. As project implementation will be led by the
individual jurisdictions in which they are located (i.e. cities, county, tribal lands, State right-of-way),
local land use regulations will apply. As a result, consistency with all local policies or approved local,
regional or State plans will be addressed during the design phase of the proposed projects.

Potentiall Less Than Less Than
X11. MINERAL RESOURCES. otentially Significant A No
—— Significant | . R Significant
Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Result in the loss of availability of a [] [] [] X
known mineral resource that would be of
value to the region and the residents of the
state?
b) Result in the loss of availability of a [] [] [] X
locally important mineral resource recovery
site delineated on a local general plan,
specific plan or other land use plan?

a) and b) No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general overview
of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the RTP/ATP
will not result in impacts to available mineral resources, although individual projects included within the
Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of the transportation
system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in the RTP/ATP
involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the Plan, such as
grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new road projects are
presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of impacts involving the
availability of known mineral resources at the time of design.



X1 NOISE.
Would the project result in:

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
with Mitigation
Incorporated

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or

L]

L]

L]

permanent increase in ambient noise levels in
the vicinity of the project in excess of
standards established in the local general
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable
standards of other agencies?

b) Generation of excessive groundborne
vibration or groundborne noise levels?

c) For a project located within the vicinity of
a private airstrip or an airport land use plan
or, where such a plan has not been adopted,
within two miles of a public airport or public
use airport, would the project expose people
residing or working in the project area to
excessive noise levels?

[
[
[
X

a) through c¢) No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in exposures to excessive levels of noise, although individual projects included
within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. Short term impacts that may
result from local construction activities will be held to noise standards of the local jurisdiction in which
the project is located (e.g. cities or County). Longer term impacts such as traffic noise will need to be
evaluated as part of the environmental review of the individual projects, with potential abatement
measures recommended as needed.

Potentially I__ess_'l_'han Less Than
XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING. A Significant o No
—— Significant | . e Significant
Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Induce substantial population growth in an [] [] [] X
area, either directly (for example, by
proposing new homes and businesses) or
indirectly (for example, through extension of
roads or other infrastructure)?
b) Displace substantial numbers of existing [] [] [] X
housing, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing elsewhere?

a) and b) No Impact — Adoption of the RTP/ATP will not result in population growth or housing
displacement. Given the small populations (Countywide estimated to be 67,254 as of January 1, 2025)
and flat or negative growth rates of the rural Lake region, improvements to or expansion of the existing
transportation system will not have a substantial impact on housing or population. Local land use
decisions regarding housing development may include the need for improved access over time to



facilitate better or more efficient circulation, although the current overall lack of development pressure
in the area would not be affected by implementing projects found within the RTP/ATP. Implementation
of projects discussed in the Plan will involve a project level evaluation of impacts to housing and
population growth at the time of design.

Potentially L_ess_'l_’han Less Than
XV. PUBLIC SERVICES. S Significant L No
— Significant | . ... | Significant
Would the project: with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Result in substantial adverse physical [] [] [] X
impacts associated with the provision of new
or physically altered governmental facilities,
need for new or physically altered
governmental facilities, the construction of
which could cause significant environmental
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable
service ratios, response times, or other
performance objectives for any of the public
services:
Fire protection? [] [] [] X
Police protection? [] [] [] X
Schools? [] [] [] X
Parks? [] [] [] X
Other public facilities? [] [] [] X

a) No Impact — Adoption of the RTP/ATP would not affect the provision of government services or
facilities. Implementing projects within the Plan would lead to improvements to or expansion of the
existing transportation system, which would benefit many of the public services including those
involving response times, access, connectivity and medical services. Short term impacts may lead to
some minor congestion and alternative routing in certain cases, although not to a significant degree.
Active transportation projects included within the RTP/ATP, upon implementation, will improve safety
and access for pedestrians and bicyclists to schools, parks and other public spaces. Implementation of
projects discussed in the Plan will involve a project level evaluation of impacts to public services at the
time of design.

Potentially IS_ieSr?i;Ii_ch;r:l Less Than No
XVI. RECREATION. Significant | . gniicant Significant
with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Would the project increase the use of [] [] [] =4

existing neighborhood and regional parks or
other recreational facilities such that
substantial physical deterioration of the
facility would occur or be accelerated?




b) Does the project include recreational [] [] [] X
facilities or require the construction or
expansion of recreational facilities which
might have an adverse physical effect on the
environment?

a) and b) No Impact — The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general overview
of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the RTP/ATP
will not lead to adverse impacts on parks or other recreational activities within the region. While
implementation of certain projects may improve transportation modes to and from local and regional
recreation areas, the potential increase in use will not result in the substantial deterioration of such
facilities. Implementation of projects discussed in the Plan will involve a project level evaluation of
impacts to parks and recreational activities at the time of design.

Potentially I__ess_'l_'han Less Than
XVII. TRANSPORTATION. A Significant O No
Would the project: Significant with Mitigation Significant Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated

a) Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance ] ] ] =
or policy addressing the circulation system,
including transit, roadway, bicycle and
pedestrian facilities?
b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA [] [] [] X
Guidelines § 15064.3, subdivision (b)?
c) Substantially increase hazards due to a [] [] [] X
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves
or dangerous intersections) or incompatible
uses (e.g., farm equipment)?
d) Result in inadequate emergency access? [] [] [] X

a) through d) No Impact — Adoption of the RTP/ATP will lead to overall improvements to the
transportation system with individual projects having a positive effect on different aspects of the system
including highways, local streets and roads, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, public transit and others.
Implementation of certain projects discussed in the Plan will involve increases in capacity, which could
result in additional vehicular movement, although such increases are not expected to adversely affect
either individual components of the transportation system, or the regional system as a whole. Many
other projects found within the Plan are intended to improve safety for automobile, bicycle and
pedestrian traffic upon implementation. An evaluation of specific impacts from yet-to-be-implemented
projects will be required at the time of design.

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL Potentially ;esrfl;lr?:r?t Less Than |
RESOURCES. Significant | 2/9NMCANt |50 nificant
with Mitigation Impact
Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Would the project cause a substantial [] [] [] X




adverse change in the significance of a tribal
cultural resource, defined in Public
Resources Code § 21074 as either a site,
feature, place, cultural landscape that is
geographically defined in terms of the size
and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or
object with cultural value to a California
Native American tribe, and that is:

i) Listed or eligible for listing in the
California Register of Historical Resources,
or in a local register of historical resources as
defined in Public Resources Code section
5020.1(k), or

ii) A resource determined by the lead agency,
in its discretion and supported by substantial
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria|
set forth in subdivision (c) of Public
Resources Code 8§ 5024.1. In applying the
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public
Resource Code § 5024.1, the lead agency
shall consider the significance of the resource

to a California Native American tribe.

a) No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general overview of both
short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the RTP/ATP will not
result in specific impacts to tribal cultural resources, although individual projects included within the
Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of the transportation
system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in the RTP/ATP
involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the Plan, such as
grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new road projects are
presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of potential impacts to
historical resources or resources potentially significant to one or more of the region’s Native American

tribes, at the time of design.

XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE Potentially | =55 Than | o Than
S Significant A No
SYSTEMS. Significant | . ... | Significant
= with Mitigation Impact
Would the project: Impact Impact
Incorporated
a) Require or result in the relocation or [] [] [] X
construction of new or expanded water,
wastewater treatment or storm water
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or
telecommunications facilities, the
construction or relocation of which could
cause significant environmental effects?
b) Have sufficient water supplies available to [] [] [] X

serve the project and reasonably foreseeable




future development during normal, dry and
multiple dry years?

¢) Result in a determination by the waste [] [] [] X
water treatment provider, which serves or
may serve the project that it has adequate
capacity to serve the project’s projected
demand in addition to the provider’s existing
commitments?

d) Generate solid waste in excess of state or [] [] [] X
local standards, or in excess of the capacity
of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair
the attainment of solid waste reduction
goals?

e) Comply with federal, state, and local [] [] [] X
management and reduction statutes and
regulations related to solid waste?

a through e) No Impact — The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in impacts to utilities and service systems, although individual projects
included within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects. The vast majority of
the transportation system in the Lake County region is pre- existing with many of the projects included
in the RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within
the Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new
road projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of
potential impacts related to stormwater drainage, electric power lines, or natural gas or
telecommunications infrastructure, at the time of design.

XX. WILDFIRE. Potentiall Less Than Less Than
If located in or near state responsibility otentiatly Significant o No
e e Significant | . ... | Significant
areas or lands classified as very high fire with Mitigation Impact
. S Impact Impact
hazard severity zones, would the project: Incorporated

a) Substantially impair an adopted [] [] [] X
emergency response plan or emergency

evacuation plan?
b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other [] [] [] X
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby
expose project occupants to pollutant
concentrations from a wildfire or the
uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

¢) Require the installation or maintenance of [] [] [] X
associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel
breaks, emergency water sources, power
lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate
fire risk or that may result in temporary or
ongoing impacts to the environment?




d) Expose people or structures to significant [] [] [] =4
risks, including downslope or downstream
flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff,
post-fire slope instability, or drainage
changes?

a through d) No Impact — The RTP/ATP is a program level document, which includes a general
overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented over time. Adoption of the
RTP/ATP will not result in specific risks involving hazardous materials or situations, although
individual projects included within the Plan may, if implemented, include potentially adverse effects.
The vast majority of the transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of
the projects included in the RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other
projects discussed within the Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way
acquisition, new structures or new road projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve
a project level evaluation of transportation projects that may that may exacerbate fire risk, or expose
people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a
result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes, at the time of design.

Less Than

XX1. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF
SIGNIFICANCE.

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Significant
with
Mitigation
Incorporated

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

a) Does the project have the potential to
substantially degrade the quality of the
environment, substantially reduce the
habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a
fish or wildlife population to drop below
self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a
plant or animal community, substantially
reduce the number or restrict the range of a
rare or endangered plant or animal or
eliminate important examples of the major
periods of California history or prehistory?

b) Does the project have impacts that are
individually limited, but cumulatively
considerable? (“Cumulatively
considerable” means that the incremental
effects of a project are considerable when
viewed in connection with the effects of
past projects, the effects of other current
projects, and the effects of probable future
projects.)

c) Does the project have environmental
effects which will cause substantial
adverse effects on human beings, either
directly or indirectly?




a) through c) Less than Significant Impact/No Impact - The RTP/ATP is a program level document,
which includes a general overview of both short- and long-range projects expected to be implemented
over time. Adoption of the RTP/ATP will not result in cumulative impacts to biological or historical
resources, although individual projects included within the Plan may, if implemented, include
potentially adverse effects, either directly, indirectly or cumulatively. The vast majority of the
transportation system in the Lake County region is pre-existing with many of the projects included in the
RTP/ATP involving improvements or maintenance of the system. Other projects discussed within the
Plan, such as grading, road widening and expanded right-of-way acquisition, new structures or new road
projects are presently only conceptual in nature and will involve a project level evaluation of impacts
and/or cumulative impacts involving biological, historical, archaeological or other resources, at the time
of design.

DETERMINATION: On the basis of this initial evaluation:

X | find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

[] 1 find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there
will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed
to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

[ 11 find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

[ ]1 find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately
analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to
be addressed.

[ ] I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because
all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE
DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to
that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are
imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

10/16/2025

Date Signature




HABEMATOLEL POMO
CULTURAL RESOURCES

November 18, 2025

Dow & Associates

John Speka, Senior Transportation Planner
525 South Main Street, Ste B

Ukiah, CA 95482

E: spekaj@dow-associates.com

RE: 2026 Lake Co Regional Transportation Plan Project, HP-20251020-02
Dear John Speka:

Thank you for your email response dated October 31, 2025, regarding cultural information in Lake
County. We appreciate your effort to contact us and wish to respond.

I see that in your initial study that you have potential impacts to cultural and tribal resources in your
attached Draft Initial Study/Negative Declaration.

Please contact the following individuals to coordinate a consultation meeting to discuss:
e TCR’s in sensitive areas
e Potential impacts to TCR’s
e Avoidance and mitigation measures

Lisa Deas, Administrative Assistant III Jen Richardson, Administrative Assistant 11
PO Box 516, Upper Lake, CA 95485 PO Box 516, Upper Lake, CA 95485
Office: (707) 900-6913 Office: (707) 900-6931

Email: ldeas@hpultribe-nsn.gov Email: jrichardson@hpultribe-nsn.gov

Please refer to identification number HP-20251020-02 in any correspondence concerning this project and
continue to provide us with any updates.

Thank you for providing us witi'the opportunity to comment.

Tribal Historic Preservation Officer

Habematolel Pomo of Upper Lake
P:707.900.6931 F:707.275.0757 P.O. Box 516 Upper Lake, CA 95485



mailto:spekaj@dow-associates.com
mailto:ldeas@hpultribe-nsn.gov
mailto:jrichardson@hpultribe-nsn.gov

Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/25
Agenda Item: #10

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL

!
€YY Lisa Davey-Bates, Executive Director 525 South Main Street, Ukiah, CA 95482
I_AKE APG www.lakeapc.org Administration: Suite G ~ 707-234-3314
Planning: Suite B ~ 707-263-7799

Draft
2026
Lake County/City Area Planning Council
Meeting Schedule

DATE LOCATION NOTE:
JANUARY 14 TBD Typically do not meet
FEBRUARY 11 Clearlake
MARCH 4 Lakeport Date change (Leadership Forum)
APRIL 8 Lower Lake / Fieldtrip
MAY 13 Lakeport
JUNE 10 Clearlake
JULY 8 TBD Typically do not meet
AUGUST 12 Lakeport
SEPTEMBER 9 Clearlake
OCTOBER 14 Lakeport
NOVEMBER 4 Lower Lake / Fieldtrip  Date Change (Holiday)
DECEMBER 9 Lakeport

Notes:

Regional Leadership Forum (Long Beach) March 9 — 11

County of Lake Budget Hearings June 16 — 17

League of California Cities Annual Conference (Anaheim) September 23 — 25
Veteran’s Day November 11


http://www.lakeapc.org/

Lake APC Meeting: 12/10/ 25
Agenda Item: #14a

LAKE COUNTY/CITY AREA PLANNING COUNCIL

Lisa Davey-Bates, Executive Director 525 South Main Street, Ukiah, CA 95482
www.lakeapc.org Administration: Suite G ~ 707-234-3314

Planning: Suite B ~ 707-263-7799

LAKE fiPe

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
Meeting Minutes

Thursday, October 23, 2025
9:00 a.m.

Primary Location:
City of Lakeport

Large Conference Room, 225 Park Street, Lakeport

Teleconference Locations:
525 South Main Street Suite B, Ukiah
Caltrans District 1, 1656 Union St., Eureka
City Council Chamber, 14050 Olympic Drive, Clearlake

Present
Blake Batten, Caltrans District 1
Ron Ladd, City of Lakeport (Director of Public Works)
Victor Fernandez, City of Lakeport (Community Development, Associate Planner)
Lars Ewing, County of Lake (Interim Director of Public Works)
Trystan Hayes, City of Clearlake (Construction Project Manager)

Absent
Efrain Cortez, California Highway Patrol
Mireya Turner County of Lake (Community Development Director)
James Sookne, Lake Transit Authority
Adeline Leyba, City of Clearlake (Public Works Department)
Alan Flora, City of Clearlake (City Manager/ Community Development Director)

Also Present
Lisa Davey-Bates, Lake Area Planning Council
Nephele Barrett, Lake Area Planning Council
Michael Villa, Lake Area Planning Council
Alexis Pedrotti, Lake Area Planning Council
Jody Lowblad, Lake Area Planning Council
Hector Ortega, Lake Area Planning Council
John Speka, Lake Area Planning Council

1. Call to order
The meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m.

2. Approval of September 25, 2025, Minutes.
Moved by Lars Ewing, seconded by Ron Ladd, and carried unanimously to approve the September 25,
2025, minutes.

3. Discussion on FY 26/27 Overall Work Program
Alexis Pedrotti led a discussion on the Overall Work Program (OWP) and presented financial
information for the upcoming application cycle. With the preliminary budget, $66,184 will be


http://www.lakeapc.org/

available for applications. Questions and feedback about the preliminary budget opened the
conversation up to discuss the cost effectiveness of a variety of digital pavement management
systems, primarily Street Saver and Vialytics. Lars noted an interest in the type of reports
included in previous pavement management updates. Alexis explained that the available OWP
budget does provide $125,000 for the pavement management update. She also noted that in
the past, OWP funding has been provided for agency staff time, but there has been a shift to
funding projects in more recent years. Lexi informed the group that OWP applications will be
released in December. Lars mentioned a potential need for an on-call traffic engineer. Lisa
Davey-Bates noted that if local agencies are able to continue to fund pavement management
software in their own budgets, it would make more funding available in the OWP for other
needs.

Announcements and Reports

a. Lake APC
i. Update on RTIP
Michael provided an update on the Regional Transportation Improvement Program
(RTIP). After the last meeting, TAC recommendations were presented to the Board,
where the resolution providing flexibility for the county to utilize their funding for either
portion of the South Main and Soda Bay Road Corridor was approved. The APC also
approved programming at the current available target share STIP funds, as well as future
shares for the City of Clearlake Dam Road Roundabout Project with the understanding
that this is not guaranteed in early years of the STIP period due to the STIP being
overcommitted for the first two years. If the county is not able to allocate their funds,
the funds will be made available to the City of Clearlake for their project. APC staff will
present RTIP draft documents in November and the proposed final RTIP will be
presented to the board on December 10, 2025, at the APC meeting.

ii. Updates on Planning Projects/Grants

John provided updates on several ongoing projects. Consultants gave a presentation on
the Wildfire Evacuation and Preparedness Plan to the Board of Supervisors, and the
project will be brought before the APC board during the November meeting. The
second phase of public participation for the Zero Emissions Vehicle Infrastructure Plan
will be upcoming, with consultants presenting at town halls and advisory committees
about their findings on preferred site locations. January 26th is the completion goal for
this project. The Local Road Safety Plan recently procured a consultant and kick-off
meetings will begin shortly. The Tribal Transportation Needs Study is in initial stages,
and there will be an upcoming meeting with Caltrans regarding the project. Additionally,
John noted that potential projects are being discussed for the Sustainable Transportation
Planning Grants call for projects, including a possible county Safe Routes to School
project in the Lower Lake area.

iii. Updates on RTP/ATP

John provided an update on the Regional Transportation Plan/Active Transportation
Plan (RTP/ATP). A draft and a CEQA environmental document have been released for
a 30 day review period. A tribal RTP workshop took place in order to discuss the
project. Additionally, a second and third workshop are taking place in the month of
October. A presentation on the draft will occur in November for the APC, with a
tentative December 10th adoption date for the RTP.

iii. Miscellaneous- None.



b. Lake Transit Authority
i. Transit Hub Update- None.
ii. Current Transit Projects- None.
iii. Miscellaneous- None.

c. Caltrans
i. Lake County Projects Update
Blake informed the group that he is awaiting project information in order to release the
Milestone Report, and a comment letter on the draft RTP will be released in early
November.

ii. Miscellaneous- None.

d. Regional Housing Needs Allocation Update-

John explained that he is awaiting the update from the Department of Housing and
Community Development on whether revisions to the proposed amount of houses needed
will be accepted. A meeting will be needed to determine how to distribute the number of
units across the three jurisdictions. Trial allocations will be developed, and each jurisdiction
will be asked for a statement of constraint regarding land availability, infrastructure, flood
zones, etc. Along with the RTP, December 10th is the desired adoption date.

e. Local Agency Updates

County of Lake: Lars informed the group that a five year plan on pavement preservation
work will be taken to the Board of Supervisors. The county is working on a capital
improvement program. Additionally, the county established a committee to evaluate future
alternatives to a stand-alone Public Works Director. Finally, the Parks and Recreation
Department is planning a Konocti Climb 5k event on November 8th.

City of Lakeport: Ron provided an update on several paving projects, including South
Main, which has been completed, and a portion of Lakeshore and Martin Street was recently
paved. Additionally, an application for the Rural and Tribal Technical Assistance Grant
Program was submitted for a project that is in line with the recently completed active
transportation plan on Armstrong Street for bike and pedestrian improvements and road
rehabilitation. Finally, Ron updated the group on the Parkside Affordable Housing Project
and the Courthouse project.

Victor Fernandez provided an update on several construction projects. Disney’s Boat
Rentals relocation from South Main Street to Lakeshore Boulevard was approved. This
project will include several docks on the lakeside and pedestrian crossing on Lakeshore
Boulevard, which is being addressed with a city engineer. Additionally, demolition at Vista
Point was completed.

City of Clearlake: Trystan provided an update on several projects. Moss/40™ intersection
road rehabilitation project will begin in November. The Dam Road Roundabout is still going
through the 65% plan review. The water line lowering for Clearlake Park project has been
completed, and, consequently, the FDR will be completed in a few weeks if weather permits.
The Arrowhead/Burns Valley/Olympic Project bids were opened and awaiting funding
allocation, likely to be an early spring project. Finally, the drainage project on Arrowhead and
Huntington is awaiting the precast drainage inlet boxes.




Tribal Updates: None.

5. Public input on any item under the jurisdiction of this agency, but which is not
otherwise on the above agenda- None.

6. Next Proposed Meeting — November 20th, 2025.
7. Adjourn Meeting — Meeting adjourned at 10:08 am

Respectfully Submitted,

John Speka
Lake Area Planning Council



	Agenda
	#2 NREN
	#5 Minutes
	#6 Wildfire Evacuation 
	#7 RTIP
	#8 RHNA
	#9 RTP/ATP
	#10 Calendar
	#14 Info TAC Minutes



